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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS -
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

[NDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council

City of Grants -

Grants, New Mexico

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,

each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for the general fund and
major special revenue fund of the City of Grants (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as hsted in the table
of contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor
enterprise, and the budgetary comparisons for the major capital project funds, enterprise funds, and all nonmajor funds
presented as supplementary information, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards Board, in the
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, as listed.

in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due fo fraudlor error.

Auditor’s Respuns1b1hty

~Our rcspon51b111ty is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audlt in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Géneral of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from matenai misstatement.

2452 Missouri Ave., P.C. Box 2707, Las Cruces, New Mexico 88004
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also inchudes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental aclivities, the business-type activitics, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Grants, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue
fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise fund of the City as of June 30,
2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the major capital projects fund, enterprise funds, and all nonmajor funds for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and Retirec Health Care Plan — Schedule of Funding Progress on pages 5 and 11 and page 59, respectively, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it fo be an essential part of -
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and compating the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do nof express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the City’s financial statements, the combining and
individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The Schedule of Expenditures of federal awards
as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, the Financial Data Schedule (FDS) as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, other schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC, and Senior Programs schedule required by New Mexico Area
Agency on Aging listed as “other supplementary information” in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly fo the underlying

accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

comparing and reconciling such information dircctly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance

with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of
Expenditures, the Financial Data Schedule, other schedules required by 2.2.2 NMAC, and Senior Programs schedule

required by New Mexico Area Agency on Aging are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic

financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23, 2013 on our
consideration of the City of Grants’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal coniro! over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KMgf;C/%y /bhaew v o, P L.

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.
Las Cruces, New Mexico
December 23, 2013




CITY OF GRANTS |
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

As management of the City of Grants, we offer our residents and others who may read the City of Grants’ financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Grants for fiscal year ended June 30,
2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The City’s fotal net position increased over the course of this year’s operations.

¢ During the year the City’s expenses were $1,811,006 less than the $11,407,875 generated in faxes, other
revenues, and transfers for governmental programs.

o In the City’s business-type activities revenues and transfers decreased 30.71% to ($5,612,939) while expenses
increased 10.3%.

s The general fund reported an excess this year of $324,180.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Grants® basic financial statements. The
City of Grants’ basic financial statements consist of three separate components: 1) government-wide financial statements: 2)
fund financial statements: and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information, including budgetary comparison information, in addition to the basic financial statements.

Certain items in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparison purposes.

Governmental-Wide Financial Statements

The governmeni-wide financial statements include a statement of net position with all government funds and account types.
In addition, a statement of activities for government activities and business activities are included.

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources. The statement of net position presents information
on all the City of Grants’ assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. Over time increases or decreases in net
position may determine whether the financial position of the City of Grants is improving or deteriorating.

The statements of accounts illustrate the statemnent of activities for the City of Grants. The statement of activities presents
information, which illustrates how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. Again, revenues and
expenses are recorded using the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of activities includes revenues from
governmental activities as well as business-type activities.

The City of Grants, also known as the primary government, is predominantly financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-cxchange revenues. These governmental activities include general government, public safety,
public works, health and welfare and culiural and recreation. These governmental activities are classified and reported in
governmental funds and special revenue funds. The business type activities are financed primarily from user fees charged
to external parties for goods and or services. These activities are reported in enterprise funds in our financial statements.
The City of Grants® business type activities include water and sewer systems, refuse, the City golf course, and housing.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report.

-5-
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Fund Financial Statements

The City of Grants accounts for its finances through several fiscal and accounting entities called funds. We, like other state

“and local governments, use fund accounting to comply with state statutes regarding all finance-related transactions. The
City of Grants has created its respective funds to establish a measure of flow from financial resources and/or fo determine
net income or net loss. These funds allow the City of Grants to manage its finances more effectively and more efficiently.
The City of Grants maintains the following categories of fund types: governmental funds, propnetaly funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental Funds

The governmental funds for the City of Grants include the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and
debt service funds. The governmental funds reporting focuses predominantly on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources that have been established by an approved appropriated budget. The governmental funds provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s gencral government operations and the basic services it provides. The financial
information contained in the governmental funds is useful in helping determine whether or not there are sufficient financial
assets to provide funding for the City’s current programs.

Proprietary Funds

Proprictary funds are used o account for activities similar to those in the private sector and focuses on the determination of
operating income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows, Proprietary funds are reporied in the same
manner that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities (revenues and expenses).
In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities that are reported in the government-wide
statements; however, they provide more detail in regards to cash flows for proprietary funds. The City’s intent is that costs
of providing the goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis will be financed or recovered through vser
charges. The City has the following enterprise funds: Utility Fund, Low Rent, Golf Course Operating Fund and Project
home.

Fiduciam Fung]s

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on assets and liabilities that are held in a trustec or agency capacity for other government
agencies and therefore cannot be used to support the City’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statement for the reason that their resources are not available to the City. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The City’s notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is necessary for a better understanding of all
data that is illustrated in the government-wide and fund financial statements. '
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Governmenf-Wide Financial Analysis

City of Granis
Summary of Net Position
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities " Total
2012 2012 2012
2013 (as restated) 2013 (asrestated) 2013 (as restated)
Assets:
Current assets and other assets $10,802,168 $11,274,623 $3,908,379 $4,045,409 $14,710,547 $15,320,032
Capital 41,339,170 38,847271 17,041,157 18,361,903 58,380,327 57,209,174
Total assets $52,141,338 $50,121,894 $20,949,536 $22,407,312 $73,090,874 $72,529,206
Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities $1,285,326  $800,277 $1,092,562 $424,136 $2,377,888 $1,224,413
Long-term liabilities 1,134,443 1,411,054 1,851,034 2926,017 2985477 4,337,071
Total liabilities 2,419,769 2,211,331 2,943,596 3,350,153 5,363,365 5,561,484

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 41,339,170 38,066,720 14,793,635 15,523,664 56,132,805 53,590,384
Restricted net position 1,739,897 3,238,820 743,845 850,933 2,483,742 4,089,762
Unrestricted net position 6,642,502 6,605,014 2468460 2,682,582 9,110,962 9,287,576
Total net position 49,721,569 47,910,563 18,005,940 19,057,159 67,727,509 66,967,722

Total liabilities and net position  $52,141,338 $50,121,894 $20,949,536 $22,407,312 $73,090,874 $72,529,206

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) make up 79.9% of the City’s total assets from governmental activities.
Investments in capital assets include: land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. The City of Grants
utilizes these assets fo provide services to its citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for future spenéding.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Grants reported a positive balance in all three categories of net position.

In evalvating the operating performances of an agency, the rate of return on assets is probably one of the most useful
measures of the entity’s profitability and efficiency. The return on assets ratio for the City is 1.0% for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013. This ratio aids management in gauging the effectiveness of its use of assets.

In the Governmental activities total liabilities have been increased by 9.4% due to an accrual for an OPEB Plan. Total
assets have increased in 2013 predominantly due to increases in capital assets including construction in progress.
Investment income continued to decrease in fiscal year 2013 due to decreases in interest rafes. These factors primarily
affect the increase in current assets in 2013 compared to 2012.

Net position for business-type activities has decreased by $1,051,219, a decrease of 5.5%. Overall, liabilities were reduced
due to annual reductions in long-term debt. Additional debt was incurred in fiscal year 2013 to improve the water system
and account for the OPEB accrual. In addition, capital assets increased (evidenced by capital fransfers in) due to
construction of utility projects.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Major 'unds

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the major operating fund for the City. The General Fund is the single largest fund pertaining to
revenues and expenditures. Total revenues in fiscal year 2012 were $8,395,770 and $8,973,434 in 2013, an increase of
$577,664 (6.9%) for comparative years. The majority of the difference is due to a decrease in taxes.

Expenditures in the General Fund for fiscal year 2012 were $6,390,183 and $6,912,375 for fiscal year 2013, an increase of
$522,192. The slight increase was due primarily fo a conscious effort to maintain expenditure levels in a declining
economy. The General Fund fund balance increased in 2013 in the amount of $324,180 with expenditures less transfers
exceeding revenues for an ending fund balance of $7,276,558 as of June 30, 2013.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS FUND

The General Government Improvements Fund accounts for the City’s capital outlay projects primarily funded from the state
legislative appropriations, federal grants, and City monies. In the fiscal year 2011/2012 the City accounted for $596,876 in
federal grant revenues and $2,004,234 in state grants for total grant revenues of $2,601,110. In fiscal year 2012/2013 the
{otal grant revenues of $1,784,991 consisted of federal grant revenues of $1,663,591 and state grant revenues of $121,400.

The revenues received by the City will fluctuate as a result of grant appropriations received from year to year. Flucluations
will also occur when monies are expended and received annually.

Expenditures in fiscal year 2011/2012 were $1,863,903. The majority of the expenditures were incurred for the downtown
master plan, street drainage projects, and various other small equipment purchases. Expenditures in fiscal year 2012/2013
were $4,795,641 with an additional capital transfer out of $447,703. The capital transfer was due to project Grants Funds
expended and incurred in the General Government Improvements Fund for the benefit of other funds. Expenditures were
incurred for the City’s roads, street drainage projects, and various other small equipment purchases.

GRT STREET AND PARKS IMPROVEMENT

The GRT Street and Parks Improvement Fund accounts for gross receipts tax increment specifically earmarked for streets '
and parks improvements. Total transfers of earmarked gross receipts tax for the fiscal year 2011/2012 was $491,480 and
$548,125 for fiscal year 2012/2013. Total expenditures for various public works projects for 2011/2012 were $46,521 and
$12,880 for 2012/2013. '

UTILITY FUND

The Utility Fund is used to account for all water, sewer and refuse revenues and expenses. 1tis a major proprietary fund for
the City. Total operating revenues for 2011/2012 fiscal year was$ 5,754,318 and $5,946,239 for 2012/2013; a slight
increase of $191,921 3.3%. The slight increase is alfributable to variation in customer usage. Net income decreased in
2013 versus 2012 by $496,855. Operating expenses increased in fiscal year 2012/2013 compared to 2011/2012 by
$688,776, which is 13.7%. The net income increase results predominantly from capital assets fransferred in from the
general government improvement fund. ‘
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General Fund Budgefary Highlights

The City of Grants total actual expenditures for fiscal year 2012/2013 were 1.2% under the budgeted expenditure amounts
for the year. Public safety is responsible for 33.5%, general government is responsible for 45.6% and public works is
responsible for .9% of the General Fund expenditures.

The City’s fotal state shared and municipal tax amount for fiscal year 2012/2013 increased by 10.6% over fiscal ycar
2011/2012. The Grants economy continued to show growth in spite of the overall economic down turns in the State and
County.

General Fund budgeted revenues and expenditures were not amended during the year.

City of Grants
Summary of Changes in Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2012 2012
2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated) 2013 (as restated)
Revenues: '
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $1,303,303  $1,277,003 $6,241,947 $6,031,593 $7,545,250 $7,308,596
Operating grants and contributions 1,165,027 912,027 30,137 25,853 1,195,167 937,880
Capital grants and contributions 1,784,991 2,837,766 0 -0 1,784,991 2,837,766
General Revenue:
Taxes 7,890,611 7,519,185 0 0 7,890,611 7,519,185
Investinent income 17,142 4,835 207 6,406 17,349 11,241
Miscellaneous 79,595 267,513 034 520 80,229 268,033
Total revenue 12,240,669 12,818,329  6,2272925 6,064,372 18,513,594 18,882,701
Expenses:

General Government 4,385,630 2,200,407 0 0 4,385,630 2,200,407
Public Safety 2,688,619 2,707,411 0 0 2,688619 2707411
Public Works 2,001,619 2,314,224 0 0 2,001,619 2,314,224
Health and Welfare 944,524 900,905 0 0 044,524 900,905
Culture and Recreation 1,039,171 1,096,346 0 0 1,039,171 1,096,346
Inierest and fees on long-term debt 30,086 41,324 0 0 30,086 41,324
Water, sewer and refuse 0 0 5,760,486 5082372 5,760,486 5,082,372
Golf ' 0 0 791,923 800,414 791,923 800,414
Rental 0 0 111,749 157,540 111,749 157,540
Total expenses 11,089,649 9,260,617 6,664,158 6,040,326 17,753,807 _ 15,300,943

Increase in net position before transfers 1,151,020 3,557,712 (391,233) 24,046 759,787 3,581,758
“Transfers 659,986 (2,036,792)  (659,986) 2,036,792 0 0
Change in Net Position 1,811,006 1,520,920 (1,051,219) 2,060,838 759,787 3,581,758
Net position — July 1 (as restated) 47,910,563 46,389,643 19,057,159 16,996,321 66,967,722 63,385,964

Net position - June 30 $49,721,569 $47,910,563 $18,005,940 $19,057,159 $67,727,509 £66,967,722
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Government Activifies

Revenue received from program and general activities was predominantly less than expenses for fiscal year 2013, with the
exception of capital grants where amounts expended have been capitalized.

Business-Type Acfivities

Business-type activities income before transfers decreased the City’s net position by $391,233. Net operational income was
responsible for this net increase. ‘

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As mentioned earlier, the Cily of Grants uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. As of the end of current fiscal year, the City of Grants governmental funds reported combined ending
balances of $9,764,712, which is a decrease from the prior year ending fund balances. The City’s proprietary funds provide
the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statement, but in more detail. The business-type
activities have demonstrated sufficient revenue and sufficient cash flow to guarantee that all expenditures, including long-
term debt will be paid in a timely manner. '

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assefs

The City of Grants net capital assets for its government type activities as of June 30, 2013 amounted to $41,339,170. This
investment in capital assets includes land improvements, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure. The most significant impact on capital assets during the year resuited from the following:

o Street Improvements and Drainage Projects

Long-term Debt

The City’s fotal debt (excluding compensated absences and leases payable) as of June 30, 2013 is $3,203,024, which
decreased by $203,023, which represents payments on outstanding debt and the addition of a NMFA loan for a street
sweeper of $192,043. The majority of this amount is due to the outstanding loan amount of $2,112 ,393 that was from the
New Mexico Environmental Department, for construction and acquisition of equipment for a wastewater treatment plant
facility previously constructed in 1992, ‘

More detailed information reparding these activities and funds is included in Nofe 5.

The City of Grants issued no new long-term bonds during the current fiscal year. The City has no general obligation bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2013,

-10-
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City of Grants
QOutstanding Bonds and Liabilities to Financial Institutions
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Activities
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenue Bonds $145,000  $285,000 $0  $140,000 $145,000 $425,000
General Obligation Bonds ' 0 0 0 0 0 0
Notes Payable 340,748 390,363 2,112,393 2,485,496 2,453,141 2,875,859
NMFA — Fire Truck 53,115 105,188 0 0 53,115 105,188
Capital Leases 0 0 135,125 212,743 135,125 212,743
NMFA Strect Sweeper 163,478 0 0 0 163,478 0
OPEB 388,290 0 0 0 388,290 0
Total $1,090,631  $780,551 $2,247,518 $2,838,239 $3,338,149 $3,018,790

Economic FFacfors

The City of Granis base gross receipts taxes which are the City’s largest resource increased by 35% from fiscal year
2009/2010 to fiscal year 2010/2011, decreased 10.6% from fiscal year 2010/2011 to fiscal year 2011/2012, and increased
6.2% from fiscal year 2011/2012 to fiscal year 2012/2013. The current fiscal year shows an increase.

The City continues to insure that revenues are sufficient to meet budgeted obligations. In the Utility Fund, the City
continues fo increase utility rates by the consumer price index facfor annually. The City makes every cfforf possible to

ensure that the resources available are maximized to

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed fo provide a genera

provide services to the public.

1 overview of the City of Grants® finances for those inferested in the

government finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or request for additional
information should be addressed to the City of Grants, City Manager at 600 West Santa Fe Avenue, Grants, New Mexico

87020.
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CITY OF GRANTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and investments $7,507,075 $2,039,241 $9,546,316
Cash held with trustee 519,296 0 519,296
Grant revenue receivable 1,714,777 0 1,714,777
Accounts receivable, net 114,127 609,855 723,082
Stafe taxes receivable 1,147,050 0 1,147,050
Internal balances (200,157) 200,157 0
Inventories o 86,467 86,467
Restricted Assels:
Cash - SBF - Construction 0 40,000 40,000
Cash - debt reserves 0 703,845 703,845
Cash - customer deposits 0 228,814 228,814
Capital Assets:
Capital assets not depreciated 6,602,641 3,156,497 9,759,138
Capital assets, depreciated 50,481,174 36,143,439 86,624,613
Accumulated depreciation (15,744,645) (22,258,779) (38,003,424)
Tofal capital assets 41,339,170 17,041,157 58,380,327
Tolal assels 52,141,338 20,949 536 73,090,874
Liabilities
Accounts payable 717,322 373,777 1,091,099
Accrued payroll 319,738 20,984 340,722
Other deferred credils 0 99 99
Customer deposits 0 233,852 233,852
Prepaid rents 0 347 347
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 248,266 463,503 711,769
Due in more than one year 1,134,443 1,851,034 2,985,477
Total liabilities 2,419,769 2,943,596 5,363,365
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 41,339,170 14,793,635 56,132,805
Restricted for:
Debt service 642,433 703,845 1,346,278
Other purposes 1,097,464 40,000 1,137,464
Unrestricted (deficit) 6,642,502 2,468,460 9,110,962
Total net position $49,721,569 $18,005,940 $67,727,509

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revanuos

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nel Assals

Operaling Capital Primary Govemment
' Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmenial - Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Conlribulions Contributions Aclivilies Aclivilies Total
Primary Government
Governmental Actlvitles:
General government $4,385,630 $248,508 $694,139 30 ($3,442,983) 30 {$3.442,983)
Public safety 2,688,619 34,676 4 801 Q (2.849,142) o {2,649,142)
Public works 2,001,619 998,321 0 1,784,991 779,693 0 779,693
Health and welfare 944,524 18,841 466,087 Q (450,596) 1} (459,598)
Cullural and recreational 1,039,171 4,957 o Q (1,034,214) ] {1,034,214)
Tnleresl and fees on 0
long-ferm debt 30,086 0 0 0 {30,086) 0 {30,086)
Tolal governmental aclivilies 11,080,649 1,303,303 1,165,027 1,784,991 (6,836,328) {6,836,328)
Business-Type Actlvifles:
Water 2,404,727 2172015 ] 0 1] {232,712) (232,712)
Sewer 2,732.983 1,954,818 Q o 0 {778,165) (778,165)
Refuse 622,776 1,819,406 0 1] 0 1,185,630 1,198,630
Golf 791,923 253,534 0 0 0 {538,389) (538,389)
Renlal 111,749 42,174 30,137 0 0 (39,438) (39,428)
Tolal business-lype activilies 6,664,168 6,241,947 30,137 0 0 {302,074) (302,074)
Yotal primary government $17,763 807 $7,645,260 $1,195,164 $1,784 991 (56,336,328) {$392,074) ($7,228,402)
General Revenues
Taxes:
Gross receipts/stale shared $6,666,602 $0 $6,666,602
Property 543,189 0 543,188
Lodgers’ lax 352,352 0 352,352
Franchise lax 328,468 328,468
Investment Income 17,142 207 17,349
Other 52,745 634 - 53,379
Loss on assel disposals 26,850 0 26,850
Operaling transfers, net 163,671 (163,071) 1]
Capilal transfers, nel 496,915 (496,915) 0
Tolal general revenues and fransfers 8,647,334 (659.145) 7,986,189
Changs in net assels 1,811,006 (1,051,219) 759,787
Net posilion (deficil), beginning of year, as previously staled 48,180,087 19,056,977 67,237,084
Restalements {269 524} 182 {268,342)
Net position (deficil), beginning of year, as restated 47,810,563 19,057,150 686,867,722
Net posilion {deficil), end of year $49,721,56% $18,005,240 $67,727,500

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Major Funds

General GRT Street Nonmajor Total
General Government & Parks Governmental Governmental
Fund Improvements Improvement ‘Funds Funds
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments $3,957,811 $583,230 $1,744,394 $1,221,640 $7.507,075
Cash held with trustee 0 0 0 519,296 519,296
Accounts receivable, net allowance 1,227,558 0 0 33,619 1,261,177
Grant revenue receivable 5,389 1,628,013 0 81,375 1.714777
Due from other funds 2,464,637 0 0 0 2,464,637
Total assets $7.,655,395 $2,211,243 $1,744,394 $1,855,930 $13,466,962
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: '
Accounts payable 65,795 $611,101 $0 $40,426 $717,322
Accrued payroll 313,042 0 0 6,696 319,738
Accrued compensaled absences - ST 0 0 0 396 396
Due to other funds 0 2,612,365 0 52,429 2,664,794
Tolal liabllities 378,837 3,223,466 0 99,947 3,702,250
Fund Balances:
Restricted 0 0 1,744,394 1,739,897 3,484,291
Committed 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned 63,984 0 0 33,347 97,331
Unassigned 7,212,574 (1,012,223) 0 (17,261) 6,183,090
Total fund balance 7,276,558 (1,012,223) 1,744,394 1,755,983 9,764,712
Total liabilities and fund balance $7,655,395 $2,211,243 $1,744,394 $1,855,930  $13,466,962

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

FUND BALANCE of Governmental Funds $9,764,712
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 41,339,170
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the funds. (1,382,313)
Bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized and therefore, are not expensed
($46,696 capitalized and $46,696 amortized). 0
Net position of governmental activities $49,721,569

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CITY OF GRANTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Major Funds

General GRT Street Nonmajor Total
General Government & Parks Governmental Governmental
Fund Improvements Improvement Funds Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal $4,802 $1,663,591 30 $272,644 $1,941,037
Intergovernmental - state 172,936 121,400 0 630,106 924,442
Intergovernmental - other 50,200 0 0 33,189 83,389
Property tax 543,189 0 0 0 543,189
State shared taxes and municipal
taxes 6,559,255 0 1] 107,347 6,666,602
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 352,352 352,352
Licenses and permits 73,951 0 0 0 73,951
Fines 12,332 0 0 0 12,332
Franchise tax 328,468 0 0 0 328,468
Fees, service charges, and rental
revenue 1,153,155 10,348 0 53,617 1,217,020
Investment income 16,335 0 0 807 17,142
Sale of property 16,110 0 0 10,740 26,850
Donations 380 0 0 770 1,150
Miscellaneous 42,321 10,107 0 317 52,745
Tolal revenues 8,973,434 1,805,446 0 1,461,789 12,240,669
EXPENBITURES
Current:
General government 3,134,463 0 0 55,265 3,189,728
Public safety 2,328,439 0 0 250,395 2,578,834
Public works 628,786 0 12,880 106,645 748,311
Health and welfare Q 0 0 868,676 868,676
Cultural and recreational 762,251 0 0 288,745 1,050,996
Capital outlay 58,436 4,795,641 0 187,470 5,041,547
Debt Service: S
Principal 0 0 0 270,253 270,253
Interest and other charges 0 0 0 28,573 28,573
Fees 0 0 0 1,513 1,613
Tolal expendifures 6,912,375 4,795,641 12,880 2,057,535 13,778,431
Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,061,059 {(2,990,195) (12,880) {595,746) (1,637,762)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Loan proceeds 0 172,808 0 0 172,808
Transfers in 31,992 1,042,770 548,125 924,992 2,547,879
Transfers out (1,768,871) 0 0 (615,937) (2,384,808)
Capital transfer in 0 944,618 0 0 944,618
Capital transfer out 0 {447,703) 0 0 (447,703)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,736,879) 1,712,493 548,125 309,055 832,794
Net changes in fund balances 324,180 (1,277,702) 535,245 (286,691) (704,968)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Funds
General GRT Street Nonmajor Total
General Government & Parks Governmental Governmental
Fund Improvements _Improvement Funds Funds
FUND BALANCE
Fund.balance, beginning of year 6,952,378 265,479 1,209,149 2,042 674 10,469,680
Fund balance, end of year $7,276,658  ($1,012,223) $1,744,394 $1,755,983 $9,764,712

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - Governmental Funds ($704,968)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outtay ($3,789,073) exceeded depreciation ($1,297,174). 2,491,899

Repayment of bond and notes payable principai is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the .

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position ($78,210). 78,210

Some expenses {or reduction thereof) reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds -

accrued compensated absences. 69,297
" Net unpaid annual required contribution for OPEB plan creates a long-term liability not recorded in

governmental funds. : (118,766)

Bond issuance costs are amortized. {(4,666) -

Change in net position of governmental activities $1,811,006

The Notes to Financia! Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Taxes $492,838 $492,838 $514,141 $21,303
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 5,765,819 5,765,819 6,660,079 894,260
Franchise fees 308,000 308,000 328,683 20,683
Fine and forfeits 55,000 55,000 12,332 (42,668)
Licenses and permits 21,500 21,500 69,420 47,920
Intergovernmental revenue 111,634 111,634 222,915 111,381
Fees and service charges 1,012,000 1,012,000 1,153,154 141,164
Donations 500 500 380 (120)
Investment income 15,000 15,000 16,335 1,335
Sale of property 17,000 17,000 - 16,110 (890)
Qther revenue 6,000 6,000 40,883 34,883

Tolal revenues 7,805,191 7,805,191 9,034,432 1,228,241
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,934,618 1,934,618 3,163,318  (1,228,700)
Public safety 2,558,187 2,558,187 2,325,261 232,926
Public works 1,798,207 1,798,207 627,532 1,170,675
Cultural and recreational © 723,228 723,228 767,615 (44,387)
Health and welfare 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 11,000 11,000 58,436 {47,436)

Tofal expendilures 7,025,240 7,025,240 6,942,162 83,078
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 779,951 779,951 2,092,270 1,312,319
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 31,892 31,992 31,992 0
Operating transfers (out) (1,667,145) (1,672,299) (1,768,871) (96,572)

Total other financing sources (Uses) {1,635,153) (1,640,307) (1,736,879) {96,572)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

and other financing sources (uses) (855,202) {(860,356) $355,391  $1,215,747
Budgeted cash carryover 855,202 860,356

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconclliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (budgetary) $355,391
Adjustments for revenue accruals, lransfers, earnings on

investments (60,998)
Adjustments for expenditures for payables, Inventory, other

expenditure accruals 29,787
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis} $324,180

The Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT STREET & PARKS IMPROVEMENTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {(Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES -
Interest on investments $2,500 $2,500 $0 © ($2,500)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating ' 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 200,000 200,000 13,282 186,718

Tolal expenditures 200,000 . 200,000 13,282 186,718
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures (197,500 (197,500) (13,282) 184,218
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 471,000 471,000 548,125 77,125
Operating transfers {out) (883,788) (883,788) 0 883,788

Tolal other financing sources (uses) {412,788) (412,788) 548,125 960,913
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over expenditures and '
other financing sources {uses) (610,288} (610,288) $534,843  $1,145,131
Budgeted cash carryover 610,288 610,288

30 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $534,843
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustrments for expenditures accruals 402
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $535,245

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Nonmajor
Golf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $73,789 $1,922,070 $43,382 $2,039,241
Cash held with trustee 0 0 0 0
Investments 0 0 0 0
Accounts receivable - other 343 0 0 343
Accounts receivable - tenants (net of allowance) ' 0 0 1,223 1,223
Accounts receivable, water and sewer (net of allowance) 0 608,289 0 608,289
Interest receivable 0 0 0 0
Inventory 0 86,467 0 86,467
Due from other funds 0 168,438 31,719 200,157
Tofal current assels 74,132 2,785,264 76,324 2,935,720
Non-Current Assets
Restricted Assets: :
Cash - SBF - construction 0 40,000 0 40,000
Cash - debt reserves 0 703,845 0 703,845
Cash - customer deposits 0 228,814 0 228,814
Total restricted assels 0 972,659 0 972,659
Capital Assets:
Capital assets - nol depreciated 0 3,109,773 46,724 3,156,497
Capital assets - depreciated 2,234,656 32,756,136 1,152,647 36,143,439
Less accumulated depreciation {1,318,604) (20,268,244) (671,931) (22,258,779)
Net capital assels 916,052 156,597,665 527,440 17,041,157
Tolal assets 990,184 19,355,588 603,764 20,949,536
LIABILITIES
Gurrent Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,735 366,083 3,959 373,777
Accrued payroll 8,029 11,958 997 20,984
Other deferred credits 0 0 99 99
Tenant security deposits/utility deposits 0 228,852 5,000 233,852
Prepaid rents 0 0 347 347
Due to other funds 0 0 0 0
Current portion of long-term debt/lease payable 82,190 380,387 926 463,503
Total current liabifities 93,954 987,280 11,328 1,092 562
Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-term debt 0 1,732,006 0 1,732,006
Compensated absences 31,125 33,444 1,524 66,093
Leases payable 52,935 0 0 52,935
Total noncurrent liabilities 84,060 1,765,450 1,524 1,851,034
Total liabilities 178,014 2,752,730 12,852 2,943,596
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 780,923 13,485,272 527,440 14,793,635
Restricted for construction 0 40,000 0 40,000
Restricted for debt service 0 703,845 0 703,845
Unrestricted 31,247 2,373,741 63,472 2,468,460
Total net position $812,170 $16,602,858 $590,912  $18,005,940

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Nonmajor
Golf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total

OPERATING REVENUES ’ :
Water, sewer and refuse sales : $0 $5,946,239 $0 $5,946,239
Golf fees 253,534 0 0 253,534.
Rental income 0 0 42174 42,174

Tolal operating revenues 253,534 5,946,239 42,174 6,241,847
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 626,637 5,054,000 78,024 5,758,661
Depreciation 163,694 655,507 33,7256 842,826

Tolal operaling expenses 780,231 5,709,507 111,749 6,601,487

Nét income (loss) from operations {526,697) 236,732 (69,575) {359,540)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 0 0 30,137 30,137
Interest earnings 0 207 0 207
Interest expense {11,692) (50,137) 0 {61,829)
Other miscellaneous income (expense) 0 0 634 634
Loss on asset disposals 0 0 0 0
Other debt expense g {842) 0 (842)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) {11,692) (60,772) 30,771 {31,693)

Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers (538,389) 185,960 (38,804) (391,233)
Operating transfers in 475,000 808,712 42,501 1,326,213
Operating transfers (out) 0 (1,489,284) 0 (1,489,284}
Capital transfers in 12,699 435,004 2,600 450,303
Capital transfers (out) 0 {944,618) {2.600) (947,218)

Change in net position {50,690) (1,004,226) 3,697 {1,051,219)
Total fund net position, at beginning of year 862,860 17,607,084 587,033 19,056,977
Restatements 0 0 182 182
Total fund net position, at beginning of year, as restated 862,860 17,607,084 587,215 19,057,159
Total fund net position, at end of year $812170 $16,602,858 $590,912  $18,005,940

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Nenmajor
Golf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $253,958 $5,885,011 $64,022 $6,202,991
Cash paid to suppliers (284,618) {4,445,508) (36,869) (4,766,995)
Cash paid to employees (353,517) {414,392) (42,852) {810,761)

Nef cash provided (used) by operating activities (384,177) 1,025,111 (15,699) 625,235
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grants and subsidies 0 0 30,137 30,137
Advances (to) from other funds 0 0 (14,493) {14,493)
Transfers in (ouf) 475,000 (680,572) 42,501 (163,071)
Non tenant income 0 0 634 634

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital

financing activities 475,000 (680,672) 58,779 (146,793)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment 0 (18,990) 0 (18,990)
Disposition of assets 0 0 0 0
Long-term debt proceeds 0 0 0 0
Loss on asset disposal 0 0 0 0
Principal paid: revenue bondsflease purchase/advances (77,618) (513,103) 0 (590,721)
Interest paid: revenue bonds/lease purchase/advances {11,692) {50,137) 0 (61,829)
Other income 0 0 0 0
Other debt expense 0 (842) 0 (842)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related

financing aclivilies {89,310} {583,072) 0 (672,382)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received : 0 {207) 0 (207)

Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivities 0 (207) 0 (207)
Net increase {decrease) in pooled cash 1,613 (238,740) 43,080 (194,147)
Pooled cash and investments, beginning of year 72,276 3,133,055 302 3,205,633
Pooled cash and investments, end of year $73,789 $2,894,315 $43,382 $3,011,486
Cash and cash equivalents $73,789 $1,922,070 $43,382 $2,039,241
Cash held with trustee 0 0 0 0
Restricted cash 0 972,659 0 972,659
Tolal cash $73,789 $2,804 729 343,382 $3,011,900
Non Cash Transactions:
Capital assets transferred in/(out) $12,699 ($509,614) $0 ($496,915)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Nonmajor
Golf Proprietary
Course Utilities Funds Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (l0ss) ($526,697) $236,732 ($69,675)  ($359,540)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash ' '
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 153,594 655,607 33,7256 842,826
Provision for uncollectible accounts 0 0 0 0
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 424 (68,245) - 21,497 (46,324)
inventories 0 3,928 0 3,928
Prepaids 0 0 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable 1,868 197,322 {1,516) 197,704
Wages payable (1,039) 4,662 436 3,959
Compensated absences {12,357) (7.785) (617) (20,759)
Tenant deposits/utility deposits 0 3,090 399 3,489
Tenanls prepaid rent 0 0 {48) (48)
Total adjustments 142,520 788,379 53,876 984,775
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities {$384,177)  $1,025111 {$15,699) $625,235

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash, certificates of deposits and investments $22,719
Total assets $22,719
LIABILITIES
Due to others $22,719
Total liabilities $22,719

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description and Reporting Entig

The municipality was originally incorporated in the year 1941 as the Town of Grants. On October 20, 1966, an ordinance
was adopted pursuant to Section 14-1-3, New Mexico Statutes, 1952 Annotated, as amended proclaiming the Town as City
of Grants (the “City”) effective December 1, 1966. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety - (Police, Fire, and Emergency Ambulance),
Highways and Streefs, Sanitation, Health and Social Services, Culture-Recreation, Water and Sewer Facilities, Housing,
Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services. The City operates the following
enterprises: waler, sewer, public housing, and a golf course.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. '

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth
in GASB 14. The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public
service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the City and/or its citizens, or
whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the Cily and is generally available fo its cilizens, A
third criferion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion fiom the reporting entity is the existence
of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City of Grants Housing Authority is the only component unit, which has

been blended with the other funds of the City in the special revenue funds (Housing Capital Funds Program and Housing
Authority Vouchers) and enterprise funds (Low Rent). The Housing Authority Board is appointed by the City Council.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Governmeni-Wide Statements — The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the Cify). These statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for
fiduciary fund activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. All assets, all liabilities and
deferred outflows and inflows of resources are included in the statement of net position. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange fransactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-
type activitics of the City and for each function of the Cily’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues
include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category (governmental, proprictary, and fiduciary) are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separ ate column.
All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonma_|0| funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from noncxchange transactions or
ancillary activities.

The City reports the general fund as a major governmental fund:

Primary Operating Fund — It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major funds:

General Government Tmprovements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvements funds received from various
sources for the improvement of City properties.

GRT Street & Parks Improvement — To account for gross receipts tax increment specifically earmarked for streets and parks
improvements authorized by City resolution.

Enterprise — Utilities fund accounts for the provision of water, sewer, and refuse services to the residents of the City. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to, administration,
operation, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection.

Enterprise — Golf Course Fund — accounts for the operation of the municipal golf course.

Agency Funds — arc used to account for monies held by the City in a cusiodial capacity. They do not report operations or

have a measurement focus.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and
proprictary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilitics are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recoghized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from sales taxes and franchise taxes are recognized if
they are collected within sixty days after year-end. These derived tax revenues are recognized when the underlying
transaction takes place (when the retail sale is generated). Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been saiisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues
are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are
considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, ¢laims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds,

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there is both restricted
and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost- reimbursement grant
resources fo such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Enterprise, and Debt Service
Funds, which are prepared by management and approved by the City Council and by the Local Government Division of the
Department of Finance and Administration.

These budpets arc prepared on the non-GA AP cash basis, excluding encumbrances, and secure appropriation of funds for
only one year. Carryover funds must be re-appropriated in the budget of the subsequent fiscal year. Because the budget
process in the State of New Mexico requires that the beginning cash balances be appropriated in the budget of the
subsequent fiscal year, such appropriated balance is legally restricted and is therefore used in the calculation to determine
the balance,

Actual expenditures may not exceed the budget on a fund basis, i.e. budgeted expenditures must be within budgeted
amounts. Budgets may be amended in two ways. All budget transfers that will exceed a cumulative of five percent of a
department’s total budget require approval from the Local Governmental Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration. Transfers that do not exceed the five percent limit require approval by the City Council. Resolutions for
budget increases will only be approved in the event of an emergency.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The budgets for the Housing Authority follow HUD requirements in that certain programs are not budgeied (HOME
program) and other program budgets are guidelines only and therefore, budgets are not amended.

The budgetary information presented in these financial statements has been amended in accordance with the above

procedures.

The Cily follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Prior to June 1, the City submits a proposed budget to the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration. The budget submitted has been approved by the City Council after presentation by the City Manager. The
operating budget includes proposed expendifures and the means of financing them.

The Local Government Division, in relation to the City, shall:

Examine each proposed budget, and on or before July 1 of each year, approve and certify to the City an
operating budget for use pending approval of final budget.

Hold public hearings on proposed budgets.

Make such corrections; revisions, and amendments to proposed budgets as may be necessary fo meet the
requirements of law.

Certify a final budget for the City prior to the first Monday in September of cach year. Such budgets, when
approved, shall he binding upon all tax officials of the State.

Upon the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, authorize the transfer of funds from one
budget item to another budget item when such transfer is required or an emergency condition exists meriting
such transfer and such transfer is not prohibited by law. In case of emergency necessitating the expenditures for
item or items not provided for in the budget, upon approval of the Secietary of Finance and Administration, the
budget may be revised to authorize such expenditures.

With written approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration and the Aftorney General, increase the
total budget of the Cily in the event the City undertakes an activity, service, project, or construction program
which was not contemplated at the time the final budget was adopted and approved and which activity, service,
project, or construction program will produce sufficient revenue to cover such increase in the budget or the
City has surplus funds on hand nof necessary to meet the expenditures provided for in the budget with which to
cover such increase in the budget.

Supervise fhe disbursement of funds to the end that expenditures will not be made in excess of budgeted items
or for items not budgeted, and that there will not be illegal expenditures.

Prescribe the form for all budgets, books, records, and accounts for the City.
With the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, make rules and regulations relating to

budgets, records, reports, handling and disbursement of public funds, or in any manner relating to the financial
affairs of the City.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions
that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council and the Local Government Division of
the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA). Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Fund.

Assets Liabilities and Equity
Cash Equivalents

The City pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment activities. A “Pooled Cash”
concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this method, all cash is
pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the pooled amount.

Investments

The City’s investments are regulated by state law, as well as by guidelines and rules promulgated by the State Investment
Council and the State Treasurer. All investments are generally highly liquid in nature and are integrated with cash on the
financial statements with appropriate disclosure. Investments are stated at fair value, which is determined using selected
bases. Certificates of deposit are reported af carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value. Additional cash,
investment information, and fair values are presented in Note 2.

The City participates in the State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool. This pool is regulated by state law and
regulations. Investment in the pool is reported at carrying amount, which reasonably estimates fair value.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The amount of cash held representing utility deposits and rental are deposifs classified as restricted on the Statement of Net
Position - Proprietary Funds.

Receivables and Payables

Under generally accepted accounting principles the City would normally include property taxes receivable subsequent fo
sixty days after year-end as revenue and accounts receivable. Cibola County has been unable to determine this amount as of
June 30, 2013 and therefore, this amount has not been recorded on the records of the City. The unrecorded revenue is not
material to the financial statements as of June 30, 2013.

Accrued expenses are accrued payroll and payroll related liabilities (withheld taxes and deductions).
Proprietary Fund Types

Accounts receivable consists of charpes fo users for utility services provided, and for unpaid charges from customers of the
golf course, and for rental assistance provided to citizens. :

Management has determined that accounts receivable are fully collectible at June 30, 2013 with the exception of certain
receivables from utility services provided to customers. Accordingly, a $72,185 allowance for doubtful accounts has been
recorded in the Joint Utility Enterprise Fund.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. The City defines capital assets as
assets with lives greater than one-year and a cost or donated value of $5,000 or greater in accordance with New Mexico
Stale Statutes.

Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Infrastructure assets have been
recorded (predominantly roads and utilities). The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
Land improvements 10-50
Infrastructure 25-50
Buildings and improvements 30-50
Machinery and Equipment 3-15

The City has not capitalized library books as their net book value has been determined to be immaterial,

Tt is the policy of the City to capifalize interest for construction projects incurred through the proprietary funds.

Property Taxes

The City of Grants receives property taxes from the Cibola County Treasurer for operational purposes. Property taxcs arc
assessed on January 1 of each year, except on livestock, and are payable in two equal installments on November 10th of the
year in which the tax bill is prepared and April 10th of the following year, with the levies becoming delinquent 30 days
thereafter. The authorized municipal tax rate for general operating purposes is .004555 per $1,000 of net taxable value of
both residential and non-residential property allocated to the municipality. In addition, tax levies are authorized by statute to
service payments due on general obligation bonds which have been authorized pursuant to state law. Currently, the City has
no outstanding general obligation bonds.

The Mill Levy tax rates for the City of Grants for 2013 were as follows:

Residential Non-Residential
General Operating 0045 .0045

These are the tax rates applied to each $1,000 of property value taxable by the City.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues relate to grant funds received prior to expenditures. The funds are considered uncarned and therefore
have been reported as deferred revenues.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes

As a local government entity, the City is not subject to federal or state income taxes.

Compensated Absences

The City allows employees to accrue annual leave based on years of service. Upon termination, acerued annual leave is paid
in full. Employees are eligible to be paid half of their accrued sick leave up to 240 hours upon termination.

As of June 30, 2013, the liability for accrued compensated absences is $359,097. The amount applicable to the Enterprise
Funds Utility is $33,444; Golf Course is $31,125, and Nonmajor Proprictary Funds of $2,450. The amount applicable fo
Government Activities is $292,078. These liabilities will be liquidated as leave time is utilized from the various funding
sources from which each employee is paid.

Cash and Cash Ilquivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary fund type considers all highly liquid investments with maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, firsi-out) or market. Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption.

State law will require the City to stop using water utility materials that contain lead. This law will go into effect on January
1, 2014. This will render approximately 50% - 70% of the City’s utility inventory obsolete and impaired. The impaired
inventory will be written off by the City when the law goes into effect. The estimated write down amount will range
between $45,000 and $63,500.

Consequently, the City will need to replenish the utility inventory by January 1, 2014. This will be a large increase in
inventory purchased in fiscal year 2014,

Net Posifion
Net position is displayed in three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any related debt attributable fo the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position — Net position are reporied as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either (1)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions or laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — Net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” and “Net investment in capital
assets.”
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash balances are reserved from subsequent years and consist of demand deposits, certificates of deposit and
short-term investment funds. The certificates of deposit have varying interest rates and maturity dates. The majority of City
cash and investments are co-mingled. All interest income is accounted for in the related funds.

The City’s invesiments are governed by state law. State regulations require that uninsured demand deposits and deposit-type
investments such as certificates of deposit be collateralized by the depository thrift or banking insfitution, At present, state
statutes require that a minimum of fifty percent of uninsured balances on deposit with any one institution must be
collateralized, with higher requirements up to 100% for financially froubled institutions.

Cash and certificates of deposit at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

CASH
Reconciled On Deposit
_ Balance June 30, 2013 Account Type
Petty Cash — Cibola Senior Center $66
Petty Cash — General Operating 1,840
Peity Cash - Utilities Operating 495
Petty Cash — Water Meter Deposits 200
Petty Cash — Appearance Bonds 500
Grants Siate Bank 1,520,487 $1,837,004 Demand Deposit
Wells Fargo Bank Government Imp. 583,230 582,730 Demand Deposit
Wells Fargo Bank Payroli 0 12,655 Demand Deposit
U.S. Bank Housing Authority — Vouchers 16,242 20,973  Demand Deposit
U.S. Bank Housing Authority — Low Rent 43382 48,456 Demand Deposit
2,166,442 2,501,818

Held and Directed by Trustee

Cash — directed by the New Mexico Finance Authority.

Debt service account 38
Debl service account 121,382
Debt service account 176,683
Debt service account 6,939
Debt reserve account 64,389
Debt reserve account 149,894
Project account -- Water Trust Board 40,000

$559,295
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Invesiments
Percent of
Investment
Cost Market Portfolio
Wells Fargo Bank:
Certificate of Deposit $400,000 $400,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 500,000 500,000
Certificate of Deposit 400,000 400,000
2,300,000 2,300,000 28%
State Treasurer: :
Pool — Reserve Contingency Fund 2,470 0
Pool — LGIP Fund 6,035,253 6,035,253
Total Pool 6,037,723 6,035,253 72%
Total Invesimenis 8,337,723 8,335,253 100%
Total Cash and Investments $11,063,460 $11,060,990
Governmental Activities $8,026,371
Business-Type Activitics 2,039,241
Business-Type Activities Restricted 972,659
Fiduciary Funds 22,719
$11,060,990
Weighted
Credit Risk- Average
Investment Type Cost Basis Market Value  Raling Maturity Days
State Investment Pool** - LGIP _ $6,035,253 $6,035,253 AAAm 59
State Investment Pool — Reserve Contingency Fund 2,470 0 +
CD’s 2,300,000 2,300,000 NR 90
8,337,723 8,335,253
Less investments reported as cash equivalents (8,335,253)
' $0
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
** The City’s investment in the State Investment Pool was not rated, although the securities within the pool are rated.
a. The investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;

b. The State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool is not SEC registered. The State Treasurer is
authorized to invest the short-term investment funds with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance
in accordance with Sections 6-10-10 I through 6-10-10 P and Sections 6-10-10 1A and E, NMSA 1978.

c. The pool does not have unit shares. Per Section 6-10-10.11F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each month all interest
earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to the coniributing entities in amounts directly proportionate to the
respective amounts deposited in the fund and the length of time the amounts fund were invested; and

d. Participation in the local government investment pool is voluntary.

e, Separately issued financial statements are available from the New Mexico State Treasurer that does disclose the
collateral pledged to secure State Treasurer cash and investments.

# The Reserve Contingency Fund was established from the State Investment Pool LGIPs remaining position in the Reserve
~ Primary Fund. The Reserve Contingency Fund, which is not rated, is a non-performing asset and, as such, a WAM cannot
be calculated. The remaining balance of the fund has been written off in accordance with the states determination that any
future distributions are not likely.

Concenfration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s policies place no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer.

Credit Risk— The City’s investments shall be in accordance with State Law, 6-10-10, and 6-10-10.1 NMSA 1978, including
but not limited to the following: Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, Strips, and US Government securities which are backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. Negotiable securities of the State of New Mexico or any county,
municipality, or school district with the advice and consent of the Board of Finance per 6-10-44 NMSA 1978, 6-10-
I0FNMSA 1978, 6-10-10NMSA 1978.

Interest Rate Risk— Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the City
investments. The City’s investment policy follows New Mexico State Statute Section 6-1 0-36E (NMSA, 1978 Comp)
requiring the interest rate on time deposits shall not be less than the rate fixed by the State Board of Finance, but in no case
shall the rate of interest be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United States Treasury bills of the same
maturity on the day of deposif.

Foreign Currency Risk— Deposits and Investmenis — The City is not exposed to the risk that changes in exchange rates will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment as none of the investments pools nor certificates of deposit are dominated in
a foreign currency.
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U.S. Grants
Bank State Bank  Wells Fargo

Cash in bank, per June 30, 2013 (Nofe 2) $69,429 $1,837,004 $595,385
Certificates of deposit (Note 2) 0 0 2,300,000
Less: EDIC coverage (69,429) (250,000) (500,000)
Uninsured public funds 0 1,587,004 2,395,385
50% collateral requirements 0 793,502 1,197,693
Pledged securities 0 3,080,000 1,315,355
Over (under) collateralized $0 $2,286,498 $117,662
Securities are held at Federal Home Loan Bank Dallas (Dallas, Texas).
Grants State Bank ] Par Value
Santa I'e Cnty NM BQ} None 801889LR5 07/01/2019 $750,000
Granls & Cibola County’s NMSch Dist., Bond 388240DX8 11/15/2013 125,000
Granis & Cibola County SD Non-Cal! 388240EI8 11/15/2017 200,000
Grants & Cibola County SD NC Fr 388240CK7 10/01/2013 125,000
Grants & Cibola County SD GO 383240FR9 04/15/2019 500,000
Hondo VY PUB SCH NONC FR 438177BVS 10/01/2013 25,000
Las Vegas NM City Sch Dist BQ 51778FCF4 07/15/2015 250,000
Lea Cnty NM Pub Sch Dist. BQ NC 521513AD3 07/15/2014 200,000
Pojoaque VY PUB SCH DIST NMBQ NONC 73085PANY9  08/01/2013 200,000
Southern Sandoval NM Flood BQ 843789EYO  08/01/2023 200,000
Taos NM Gross Receipts BQ Call 87601RAL4  06/01/2023 300,000
West Las Vegas SD FR 953769GM?2 12/01/2015 105,000
West Las Vegas NM BQ) 953769JK3 07/15/2015 100,000

Total Pledged $3,080,000

Securities are held at The Independent Bankers Bank (Dallas, Texas).
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NOTE 3. PLEDGED COLLATERAL (CONTINUED)

Market Value

Wells Fargo Bank
FN AL0604 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138EGU69  08/01/2026 $103,947
FN AQ9991 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138MSC56  02/01/2043 9,653
N AT5895 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138WTRRY  06/01/2043 9,808
FN AR1196 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138NXKIJ5 01/01/2043 4,812
FN AD8529 4.5% (FNMA-PT) 31418WPP9  08/01/2040 13,206
N AE0215 4.0% (FNMA-PT) 31419AGZ4 12/01/2039 58,813
FN AT2722 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138WQAYS  05/01/2043 249,297
FN AT2015 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138WPGZ1  04/01/2043 43,749
FN AH8825 4.5% (FNMA-PT) 3138AAYX3  03/01/2041 33,825
EN AE2539 4.5% (FNMA-PT) 31419CZD3 09/01/2040 12,754
FN AJ3790 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3138AVI83 11/01/2026 30,622
N AB7730 3.0% (FNMA-PT) 3141 7ESU6 01/01/2043 43,260
FN AH0125 3.5% (FNMA-PT) 3138A1D73 01/01/2041 701,611
Total Pledged $1,315,355

Securifics are held at the Bank of New York (New York, New York). |

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodiat credif risk is the risk that in the event ofa bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be retorned to it. The '
government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013, $1,080,030 of the government’s
bank balances of $4,801,818 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $1,080,030
Uninsured and collateralized held by a member bank other than the depositing bank. 2,902,359
$3,982,389
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the City’s primary government for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Balance Balance
06/30/2012 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2013

Governmental Activilies:

Capital Assets:
Non-Depreciable: '
Art $122.897 $0 $0 $0 $122,897
Land 3,420,503 0 0 0 3,420,503
Construction in process 2,339,223 2,832,699 0 (2,112,681) 3,059,241
Depreciable:

~ Buildings 11,961,205 2,600 0 142,062 12,105,867
Land improvements 5,715,860 28,566 0 20,994 5,765,420
Machinery and equipment 6,573,963 428,293 0 (52,311 6,949,879
Infrastructure 23,161,091 0 0 2,498,917 25,660,008

Total 53,294,742 3,292,158 0 496,915 57,083,815

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (3,729,812) (282,317) 0 0 (4,012,i129)
Land improvements (1,321,081) {146,432) 0 0 {1,467,513)
Machinery and equipment {4,858,569) (360,361) 1,382 0 (5,217,548)
Infrastructure (4,538,009) (509,447) 0 0 (5,047,456)
Total accumulated depreciation (14,447,471)  (1,298,556) 1,382 0 (15,744,645)
Net capital assels $38,847,271  $1,993,602 $1,382 $496,915 $41,339,170

Depreciation expense for governmental activities is $1,298,556 for the year.
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Balance Balance
06/30/2012 Additions Deletions Transfers  06/30/2013
Business-Type Activities:
Capiial Assets:
Non-Depreciable:
Land $2,309,374 $0 $0 $0  $2,309,374
Construction in process 1,930,129 0 0 (1,601,220) 328,909
Idle assets 392,602 0 0 0 392,602
Waler rights 125,612 0 0 0 125,612
Depreciable:
Buildings 2,060,549 0 0 0 2,060,549
Land improvements 4,068,226 0 0 0 4,068,226
Machinery and equipment 3,150,809 18,990 0 12,699 3,182,498
Infrastructure 25.740,560. 0 0 1,091,606 26,832,166
Total 39,777,861 18,990 0 (496,915) 39,299,936
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (947,813) (51,475) 0 0 (999,288)
Land improvements (537,306) (128,023) 0 0 (665,329)
Machinery and equipment (2,301,931) (268,743) 0 0 (2,570,674)
Infrastructure (17,628,908) (394,580) 0 0 (18,023,488)
Total accumulated depreciation (21,415,958) (842,821) 0 0 (22,258,779)
Net capital assels $18,361,903  ($823,831) $0  ($496,915) ($17,041,157)

Depreciation expense for business-type activities is $842,821 for the year.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

General Government $1,110,758 30
Public Safety 105,326 0
Health and Welfare 82,472 0
Water 0 305,901
Sewer 0 349,601
Golf 0 153,594
Housing 0 33,725
Total $1,298,556 $842,821

-39-




CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following summarized the changes in the long-term debt for government activities during 2013:

Amount

Balance Restate- Deletions/ Balance Due Within

06/30/2012 ments Additions Transfers 06/30/2013 One Year

Bond payable $285,000 $0 $0 ($140,000) $145,000 $145,000
Notes payable 390,363 0 0 (49,615) 340,748 49,754
NMFA — fire truck 105,188 0 0 (52,073) 53,115 53,115
NMFA — street sweeper ' 0 0 192,043 (28,565) 163,478 0
Accrued compensated abscnces 360,979 0 228,517 (297,418) 292.078 397
OPEB - liability 0 269,524 118,766 0 388,290 0
Totals $1,141,530 $269,524 $539,326 ($567,671) $1,382,709 $248,266

Bonds and notes payable have been and are liquidated by gross receipls tax revenues. Accrued compensated absences have

been liquidated in the past by the fund to which the employees are assigned.

Series: New Mexico Finance Authority
Purpose: 1993 A and B Refunding
Original Issue: $1,495,000

Principal: August |

Interest; February I and August 1

Rates: 620% - 3.110%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 ' $145,000 $2,255 $147,255
Purpose: Construction of Building o be leased for use as museum

Date of Tssue: December 1, 1998
Original Issue: $844,445

Principal: May 1
Interest: November ! and May 1
Rate: 3.150% - 5.150%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 _ $49,754  $16,526  $66,280
2015 49,896 14,176 64,072
2016 55,043 11,801 ~ 66,844
2017 60,194 9,147 69,341
2018 60,350 6,210 66,560
2019 65,511 3,242 68,753

Totals $340,748  $61,102 $401,850
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LLONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Purpose: Purchase of Fire Truck

Date of Issue:  July 10, 2009
Original Issue: $203,000

Principal: May 1
Inierest: November | and May 1
Rate: 1.32% - 2.45%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 _ $53,115 $1,301  $54,416
Series: New Mexico Finance Authority

Purpose: Purchase of Street Sweeper

Date of Tssue:  August 17,2012
Original Issue: $192,043

Principal: May 1
Interest: November 1 and May 1
Rate: 1.23%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $40,565 $526 - $41,091
2015 40,728 445 41,173
2016 40,943 337 41,280
2017 41,242 188 41,430

Totals $163,478 $1,496 $164,974

The annual principal payment requirements for debt outstanding as of June 30, 2013, in governmental aclivities, are
suminarized as follows:

Principal
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Payment
2014 : $288,434
2015 90,624
2016 95,986
2017 101,436
2018 60,350
2019 65,511
Accrued compensation 292,078

$994,419
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JUNE 30, 2013

NOTEL 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following summarizes the changes in the Business-Type Activities Long-Term Debt during 2013:

Amount Due

Balance Deletions/ Balance  Within One

06/30/2012 Additions Transfers  06/30/2013 Year

Bonds payable $140,000 $0  ($140,000) $0 $0

Notes payable 2,485,496 0 (373,103) 2,112,393 380,387

Leases payable 212,743 0 (77,618) 135,125 32,190
Accrued compensaled absences 87,778 25,686 (46,445) 67,019 926

Totals $2,926,017 $25,686 ($637,166)  $2,314,537 $463,503

Nofes outstanding reported in the Proprietary Fund at June 30, 2013, consist of the following:

New Mexico Environmental Department Loan

Purpose: Construction and Acquisition of Equipment for Waste Water Treatment Plant

Original Issue: $6,600,000
Principal: August 15
Interest: August I3
Rates 3.00%

Amortized as follows:

Maturity Principal Interest Total
2014 $370,154 $38,526 £408,680
2015 371,557 31,123 408,680
2016 385,108 23,572 408,680
2017 392,810 15,870 408,680
2018 400,667 8,013 408,680

Totals $1,926,296 $117,104 52,043,400
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NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

New Mexico Finance Authority — 194 WTB

Purpose: Construction of water system improvements along Nimitz Drive,
Original Issue: $168,438

Principal: June 1

Interest: December 1 and June 1

Rates Zero plus .25% administrative fee

Amortized as follows:

(Adm. Fee)

Fiscal year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $8,265 $380 $8,645
2015 8,285 359 8,644
2016 8,306 339 8,645
2017 8,327 318 8,645
2018 8,348 297 8,645
2019 —2023 42,055 1,171 43,226
2024 — 2028 42,581 643 43,224
2029 — 2031 25,803 129 25,932

Totuls $151,970 $3,636 $155,606
New Mexico Finance Authority — 152 WTB
Purpose: Construction of water system improvements — First Street, Second Street, and Roosevelt Street.
Original Issue: $40,000
Principal: June |
Interest: December 1 and June |
Rates Zero plus .25% administrative fee
Amortized as follows:

(Adm, Fee)

Fiscal year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $1,968 $85 $2,053
2015 1,973 80 2,053
2016 1,977 75 2,052
2017 1,982 71 2,053
2018 1,987 66 2,053
2019 —2023 10,010 253 10,263
2024 — 2028 10,137 127 10,264
2029 —2030 4,092 15 4,107

Totals $34,126 $772 $34,898
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NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bank of the West - Lease

Purpose: To Purchase Golf Carts
Original Issue: $234,842

Principal: Monthly

Interest: Monthly

Rate: _ 5.75%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 $42,644 $3,915 $46,559
2015 44,786 214 45,000
Totals $87,430 $4,129 $91,559

Grants State Bank - Lease

Purpose: To Purchase Golf Course Equipment
Original Issue: $178,151

Principal: Monthly

Interest: Monthly

Rate: 5.723%

Amortized as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $39,546 $1,627 $41,173
2015 8,149 49 8,198

Tolals $47,695 $1,676 $49,.371
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following summarizes the combined aggregate maturities for long-term borrowing in the Proprietary Fund for the years

following June 30, 2013:
Principal
June 30, Payment
2014 $462,577
2015 440,750
2016 395,391
2017 403,119
2018 411,002
2019 -2023 52,065
2024 - 2028 52,718
2029 - 2031 29,895
Accrued compensation — long-term 68,019
Total $2,315,536

Lease Purchase Contracts

At June 30, 2013 the City had machinery and equipment capitalized under purchase agreements, as follows:

Machinery and equipment

$513,444

Of the total interest cost incurred on long-term debt of $78,710 none was capitalized at June 30, 2013.
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CITY OF GRANTS

JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 6. INTERIFFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Transactions

There are transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially expended from one fund that are
properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditure

in the fund that is reimbursed.

Interfund payables and receivables are reflected in the appropriate fund.

Interfund Transfers In (Out)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transfers Out

Nonmajor
General Governmental
TFund Funds Utilities Totals
Transfers In:
General fund $31,992 $0 $0 $31,992
General povernmental improvements 700,000 0 342,770 1,042,770
GRT Street & Parks Improvement - 548,125 0 0 548,125
Nonmajor governmental funds 351,556 573,436 0 924,992
Utilities 137,198 0 671,514 808,712
Golf course 0 0 475,000 475,000
Nonmajor proprietary funds 0 42,501 0 42,501
Totals $1,768,871 $615,937 $1,489,284 $3,874,092
Capital Transfers In (Out) Transfers OQut
General Nonmajor
Government Proprietary
Improvements Utilities TFunds Totals
Transfers In: :
General government improvements $0 $944,618 $0 $944 618
Utilities 435,004 0 0 435,004
Golf 12,699 0 0 12,699
Nonmajor proprictary funds 0 0 2,600 2,600
Totals ' $447,703 $944,618 $2,600 $1,394,921
Duc From (i0) Other Funds Due To
General Nonmajor
Governmental  Governmental
Improvements Funds Totals
Due EFrom:
General fund $2,443,927 $20,710 $2,464,637
Nonmajor proprietary funds 0 31,719 31,719
Utilities 168,438 0 168,438
Totals $2,612,365 $52,429 $2,664,794
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 7. PENSION PLAN — PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Plan Description. Substantially all of the City of Grants® full-time employees participate in a public employee retirement
system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978). The Public
Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor benefits and cost-of-
living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing
to PERA, P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-2123. The report is also available on PERA’s websile at
www.pera.state.nm.us,

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 9.15% (ranges from 3.83% t0 16.65% depending upon the plan -
i.e., state general, state hazardous duty, state police and adult correctional officers, municipal general, municipal police,
municipal fire, municipal detention officer) of their gross salary, police contribute 7.0% and firc employees contribute 8.0%.
The City of Grants is required to contribute 9.15% (ranges from 7.0% to 25.72% depending upon the plan) for other
employees of the gross covered salary, police coniribute 18.5% and fire employees contribute 17.5%. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City of Grants are established in State statute under Chapter 10, Articte 11, NMSA
1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the legislature. The City of Grants’ contributions to PERA for the
fiscal years ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $351,413, $341,454 and $335,418, respectively, which equal the
amount of the required contributions for each fiscal yeai. :
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JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 8. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
STATE RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN
The City of Grants has chosen not to participate in State Ret’iree Health Care Plan.
CITY OF GRANTS RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE
A, Plan Description and-Funding Policy
Plan Description
The plan provides for health insurance for employces who retire from the City with at least 25 years of City service. Those
eligible retirees receive an employer contribution of a fixed percentage (currently 85%) of the premium amount for pre-65
retiree coverage under the plan.
1. Plan Name
City of Grants Retirce Health Insurance Trust Fund

2. Plan Type

The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan.

3. Contributions and Reserves

a. The authority under which the obligations of the plan participants and employer are established and may
be amended is possessed by the City.

b. The employer and patticipant contribution rates are determined annually by the City based on the
recommendations of the staff and consulting actuary.

c. The plan is operated on a pay-as-you-go basis as of June 30, 2013.

4, Other Reporting

Because the OPEB plan described herein is not administered through a trust (as of June 30, 2013) as defined under
Paragraph No.4 of GASB No. 43, GASB No. 43 accounting is not required for this plan for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013.

B. Current Year Annual OPEB Cost, Employer Contributions and Net OPEB Obligation

(1) @) (€) ) 3) . (6) )] ®
Increase
(Decrease)

in Net Net OPEB Net OPEB
Interest on Annual OPEB Obligation at | Obligation at
Net OPEB | Adjustment OPER Cost Employer Obligation | Beginning of { End of Year

ARC Obligation | tothe ARC | {(1)+(2)=(3)} | Coniributions | {(4)-(5)} Year | {{(6)+(N)

$150,758 30 30 $150,758 $31,992 $118,766 $269,524 £388,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 8. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

C. Three-year History of Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
m ) @ @ ©)
Percentage of Annual
OPEB Cost
Employer Contributed Net OPEB Obligation

Fiscal Year Ending Annual OPEB Cost Conlributions {(3Y(2)} at End of Year
 6/3012011 $150,758 50 0.00% $150,758

6/30/2012 $150,758 $31,992 21.22% $269,524

6/30/2013 $150,758 $31,992 21.22% $388,290

D. Funded Status of the Plan as of Current Valuation Date

(D @) 3) ) ® ©) )
Unfunded .
Actuarial :
Accrued Ratio of UAAL
_ Actuarial Liability Funded Annual to Covered
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll
Valuation Date | Value of Assels Liability {(3)-2n £2)/(3)) Payroll {(D6)}
7/1/2010 $63,984 $1,113,491 $1,049,507 5.75% $2,959,872 35.46%

E. Disclosure of Information about Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

1. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

2. The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

3. GASB No. 45 calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the
time-of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan participants to that
point, In addition, the projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and
plan participants in the future. '

4, Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. In addition, consistent with that perspective, actuarial
methods and assumptions used in developing the amounts in this report include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities.

5. The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial

valuation using the actuarial methods and assumptions .summarized below. The City has chosen to have an actural
valuation every three years.
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JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 8. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Aciuarial cost method

Projected Unit Credit

Asset Valuation method Market
Actuarial assumptions:

" Annual investment return assumption (discount rate)" 4,00%

Projected annual salary increases N/A

Weighted-average at valuation date N/A

Annual Healthcare Trend Rates'? 8.50% in FYE 2011

Declining to

6.00% in FYE 2016

Amortization Method Level Dollar

Amortization period 30 year open period

' Includes inflation assumption of 4.00%.

? Annual Healthcare Trend Rates for dental and vision benefits are 6.00% in all years.

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Audit

The City receives Federal and State Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the funding
agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms
and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of the City management, such disallowances, if any, will not be

significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 10. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America require disclosure, as part of the basic financial
statements, of certain information concerning individual funds including:

Net Working Capital:

Enterprise Fund: .

Utility $1,797,984
Low Rent $64,996
Golf Course ($19,822)
Deficit Fund Balance (or fund net position of individual funds:

General Government Improvements ($1,012,223)
Housing Authority — Vouchers ($16,856)
Litter Control and Beautification - ($405)

The deficit will be funded by future funding and general fund transfers.

Excess of fund actual expenditures or fransfers out over budget:

General Fund — Transfers Out ($96,571)
Cibola Senior Center ($3,667)
Emergency Medical Services Fund ($81,336)
Foster Grandparents Program Fund ($61)
Litter Control and Beautification Fund ($260)
Senior Employment Program ($8,676)
Low Rent : ($11,361)
Housing Authority Capital Funds Program ($42,502)
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JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 11. SURETY BOND

Surety bonds are in force per the following schedule:

Insurance Company Type of Bond Coverage From - To Coverage Limits

Western Surety Blanket Position 10/01/2012 $10,000 each on 43 positions including
09/30/2013 Cashiers, Mayor, Councilmen, City Manager,

Judge, various Directors, Secretaries, Clerks,
efc.

Western Surety PE Position 08/25/2012 City Manager - $50,000

Schedule (1) 08/24/2013 Municipal Judge - $50,000
Chartis Airport Premises 07/01/2012 $1,000,000 each occurrence
Legal Liability 06/30/2013 $50,000 each A/C, $100,000 each occurrence,
Medical Payments $2,500 ded $1,000 each person
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 12. FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The City has defined fund balance classifications for governmental funds as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — includes amounts that by their nature are not expendable such as mventoues prepaids
and long-term notes receivable.

Resiricted Fund Balance — includes amounts that have constraints placed on their use which are:

externally imposed by:
s Creditors (such as debt covenanis)
s  (Grantors
s Confributors
o Laws or regulations of other governments (state and federal)

OR
imposed by law through constitutional prdvisions or enabling legislation.

Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources
(from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be
used only for the specific purpose stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability-means that a

- government can be compelled by an external party — such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary - to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the
legislation.

Committed Fund Balance — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal resolution of the City’s Council. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the
government removes or changes the specified use by resolution (the same type of action taken to commit the funds).

Assigned Fund Balance — includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council, a finance or budget committee, or the City
Manager to which the Council has delegaied the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — includes amounts in the General Fund that have not been classified in any other fund balance
category nofed above.

Hierarchy of Application of Expenditures

The City will apply restricted resources first when an expenditure is mcurred for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance or net position is available,

The City wifl apply committed resources first, then assigned, then unassigned when an expenditure is incurred for which
amounts in any of these unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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NOTE 12. FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)

The classification of governmental fund balances are as follows:

Major Funds
Capital ~ GRT Parks
Projects & Street
General Fund Fund-GGI Improvements Other Funds Total
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Restricted for:
Cemetery care 0 0 0 103,955 103,955
Health and social services 0 0 0 40,879 40,879
Streets and parks 0 0 1,744,394 586,432 2,330,826
Housing 0 0 0 0 0
Fire protection 0 0 0 4,422 4,422
Library 0 0 0 19,720 19,720
Law enforcement and corrections 0 0 0 112,908 112,908
Recreation and promotion 0 0 0 229,148 229,148
Debt service 0 0 0 642,433 642,433
Assigned To:
Senior activities 0 0 0 33,347 33,347
City maintenance/projects 0 0 0 0 0
Retiree healthcare 63,984 0 0 _ 0 63,984
Unassigned 7,212,574 (1,012,223) 0 {17,261} 6,183,090
Total fund balances $7,276,558 ($1,012,223)  $1,744,394  $1,755,983  $9,764,712

NOTE 13. PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL

The City is a member of the New Mexico Self-Insurers’ Fund (the “Fund”). The Fund was created to formulate, develop,
and administer a program of modified self-funding for the Fund’s membership, obtain lower costs for insurance coverage,
and develop a comprehensive loss control program. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund for its workers’
compensation liability, general liability, auto liability, auto physical damage, and property coverage. The Cily’s agreement
with the Fund provides that the Fund will be self-sustaining through member premiums, and will provide, through
commercial companies reinsurance confracts, individual stop loss coverage for member cities.

The City paid premiums of $426,892 for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 14, OPERATING LEASES

The City of Grants has entered into one thirty-six (36) month operating lease with Tricon Group Ltd./IBM covering an
“IBM Power 7 Server and Peripherals”, calling for initial monthly payments of $1,418 beginning April 1, 2012 and $1,491
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, '

The City of Grants has entered into five, forty-eight (48) month operating leases with Ricoh Business Solutions for copiers
and peripherals in various locations with varying monthly payment amounis as follows:

Ricoh Aficio MP C2050 — monthly paymenis of $128 (lease term beginning September 1, 2010)

Ricoh Aficio MP C2551sp — monthly payments of $255 (lease term beginning August 1, 2012)

Ricoh Aficio MP 7001sp — monthly payments of $405 (lease term beginning June 1, 2011)

Ricoh Aficio MP 2851sp — monthly payments of 120 (lease term beginning February 1, 2012)

Ricoh Aficio MP C6501sp — average monthly payments of $664 (lease term beginning November 1, 2012)

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2014 $36,929
2015 30,981
2016 12,515

Total $80,425

All of the above leases contain provisions for termination in the event budgetary constraints prevent the City from meefing
financial obligations under said leases. '
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CITY OF GRANTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 :

NOTE 15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The City issued revenue bonds to finance the construction and improvements of the water and waste water (sewer) facilities.
Both the water and sewer departments are accounted for in the utilities fund, which also accounts for refuse services.
However, the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue generated by the water and sewer activities for repayment.
Summary financial information for the water and sewer departments is presented below. '

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Water Sewer
Assets:
Current assets $2,947.537 $216,789
Restricted assets 620,974 351,685
Capital assets 9,393,219 6,772,919
Total assels
Liabilities;
Current liabilities 477,874 469,878
Noncurrent liabilities 967,490 788,651
Total liabilities 1,445,364 1,258,529
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 8,048,664 5,056,219
Restricted 392,387 351,912
Unrestricted (2,819,759) 106,259
Total nef position $5,621,292 $£5,514,390

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Water Sewer

Water/sewer charges, pledged against bonds $2,172,015 $1,954,818
Depreciation expense {305,901) (349,6006)
Operating expense (2,072,916) (2,358,308)
Operating income {206,802) (753,096)

Interest income 78 78
Interest expense and other debt expense (25,910) (25,069)
Operating transfers, net (226,858) (226,858)
Capital fransfers, net (382,210) (127,403)
Change in net position (841,702) (1,132,348)
Beginning net position 6,462,994 6,646,738
Ending net position $5,621,292 $5,514,390
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 15. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINULED)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Water Sewer
Net Cash Provided (Used) By:
Operating activitics $56,841 ($184,152)
Noncapital financing activities {226,858) (226,858)
Capital and related financing activities (1,180,579) 597,509
Tnvesting activilies 78 78
Net increase (decrease) (1,350,518) 186,577
Beginning cash and cash equivalents (1,376,326) 89,943
Ending cash and cash equivalents ($2,726,844) $276,520
Cash and Cash Equivalents: :
Cash (included in current assets) ($3,347,818) ($75,165)
Cash (restricted assets) 620,974 351,685
($2,726,844) $276,520
NOTE 16. RESTATEMENTS
Beginning equity was restated for the following:
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds:
Low Rent — prior year voided checks $182
Total Proptietary Funds/Business-Type Activities $182
Governmental Activities:
To correct beginning balance of Retiree Health Plan liability $269,524
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JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 17. COMMITMENTS

The City had outstanding construction contracts at June 30, 2013 of $3,092,568 with various contractors.

NOTE 18. ENABLING LEGISLATION

In 2010/2011, the City of Grants enacted enabling legislation to creafe a special gross receipts tax. The legislation specified
that the proceeds of this tax could be used only to finance street and parks improvements. The City determined that the
restriction was legally enforceable. The government-wide statement of net position prepared by the City for the year ended
June 30, 2013, included the following information:

Net position restricted for:
Street and parks improvement $1,744,394
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CITY OF GRANTS

RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN — SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

JUNE 30, 2013

A. Schedule of Funding Progress
1. Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Value of Assefs
Actuarial Accrued Liability
Unfunded Actuarial Accroed Liability (3 - 2)
Funded Ratio (2/3)
Annual Covered Payroll
Ratio of UAAL to Covered Payroll (4/6)

e R

6/30/2011

July 1, 2010

$0
$1,113,491
$1,113,491
0%
$2,779,835
40.06%

B. Significant Factors Affecting the Comparability of Amounts Reported.

6/30/2012

July 1, 2010
$31,992
$1,113,491
$1,081,499
2.87%
$2,735,798
39.53%

6/30/2013

July 1,2010
$63,984
$1,113,491
$1,049,507
6.10%
$2,959,872
35.46%

Because this is the first actuarial valuation for the plan, there are no such factors to be identified. The City will have their
next valuation as of July 1, 2013 for the fiscal year end reporting period of June 30, 2014.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than expendable trusts and
major capital projects that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Cemetery Perpetual Care — To account for the portion of the sale of cemetery lots fo be used for the perpetual care and
maintenance of the city cemetery. Authorized by cify resolution and NMSA 3-40-1.

Cibola Senior Citizens — To account for stafe and federal funding for senior programs authorized by federal regulations.

Emergency Medical Services — To account for the state funding for the acquisition of emergency medical equipment.
Authority NMSA 24-10A-1.

Fire Protection — To account for the state funding and for the acquisitibn and maintenance of adequate fire protection
facilities in the Grants-Milan area. Authority NMSA 59A-53-1.

Foster Grandparents Program — To account for state funding for senior citizens. Authorized by city resolution.

Gasoline Road Tax — To account for state funds for maintenance of roads. Authorized as a special revenue fund by city
resolution and NMSA 7-1-6.9.

Housing_Authority Capital Funds Program — To account for federal funding made available by Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) to Public Housing Authorities for their capital activities, including modernization and development of
public housing. Financing is authorized by federal regulations.

Housing Authority Vouchers — To account for the Federal funding assistance payments and modernization provided by
HUD, Section 8 grants used for housing rental of homes. Financing is authorized by Federal regulations.

Juvenile Recreation — To account for the revenues generated by cigarette taxes, which are restricted to expenditures for
recreational purposes. Authority NMSA 7-12-15.

Law Enforcement Protection — To account for the stafe funding for law enforcement, which is used to provide adequate
police protection. Authority NMSA 29-13-3.

Litter Control and Beautification — To account for funding for cleanup and beautification from the State Highway
Department. Authorized by city resolution and NMSA 67-16-14,

Local Government Corrections — To account for state grani monies received by the municipality for prisoner care.
Authority NMSA 33-3-25.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Lodgers® Tax — To account for the collection and administration of the lodgers’ tax which is imposed on overnight motel
and motel accommodations. Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Lodgers’ Tax Promotional — To account for the expenditure of lodgers’ tax funds, which are used to promote commerce and
tourism. Authority NMSA 3-38-14.

Senior Companion Program — To account for provision of nutrition services, transportation, information, and referrals.
Authorized by cify resolution.

Senior Employment Program — To account for state funding for the employment of seniors. Authorized by city resolution.

Special Library Donation — To account for memorial donations and the purchase of books for the library. Authorized by
city resolution.

State and Local (S & L) Narcotics Assistance Control Program - To account for the Federal funding for law enforcement
activities against narcotics use and trafficking. Authorized enforcement by Federal regulations PL 99-570.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Cemetery Cibola Emergency
Perpetual Senior Medical Fire Foster
— Care Citizens Services Protection Grandparents
ASSETS ‘
Cash ' $103,955 $17,343 $600 $4,422 $4,134
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 0 0
Grant revenue receivable 0 23,211 27,200 0 5,720
Total assels $103,855 $40,554 $27,800 $4,422 $9,854
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $3,027 $0 30 $0
Accrued payroll 0 4,180 0 0 0
Accrued compensated absences - ST 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 0 0 0 4,200
Tolal liabilities 0 7,207 0 0 4,200
Fund Balance:
Restricted 103,955 0 27,800 4,422 5,654
Assigned ' 0 33,347 0 0 0
Unrestricted 0 0 0 0 0
Total fund balance 103,955 33,347 27,800 4,422 5,654
Total liabilities and fund balance $103,955 $40,554 $27,800 $4.422 $9,854

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Housing
Authority
Capital Housing
Gasoline Funds Authority Juvenile
Road Tax Program Vouchers Recreation

ASSETS
Cash $586,432 $0 $16,262 $92,373
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 0
Grant revenue receivable 0 0 0 0

Total assels $586,432 $0 $16,262 $92,373
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $675 $0
Accrued payroll 0 0 328 0
Accrued compensated absences - ST 0 0 396 0
Due to other funds 0 0 31,719 0

Total liabililies 0 0 33,118 0
Fund Balance:
Restricted 586,432 0 0 92,373
Assigned ' 1] 0 0 0
Unrestricted 0 0 {16,866) 0

Total fund balance ‘ 586,432 0 (16,856) 92,373

Total liabilities and fund balance $686,432 $0 $16,262 $92,373

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2013

Law Litter Local Lodgers'
Enforcement Controland Government  Lodgers' Tax
Protection Beautification' Corrections Tax Promotional
ASSETS . '
Cash $22,158 30 $42,368 $54,564 $85,316
Accounts receivable 0 0 0 33,619 0
Grant revenue receivable 0 6,832 0 0 0
Total assels $22,158 $6,832 $42,268 $88,183 $85,316
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liahilities:
Accounts payable . 30 $0 $0 $0 $36,724
Accrued payroll 0 427 0 0 : 0
Accrued compensated absences - ST 0 0 0 0 0
Due to other funds 0 6,810 0 0 0
Tolal liabilities 0 7,237 0 0 36,724
Fund Balance:
Restricted 22,158 0 42,368 88,183 48,592
Assigned 0 0 0 0 0
Unrestricted 0 {405) 0 0 0
Total fund balance 22,158 (405) 42,368 88,183 48,5692
Total liabilities and fund balance $22,158 $6,832 $42,368 $88,183 $85,316

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2013

State
and Local
Senior Senior Special Narcotics
Companion Employment Library Assistance
Program Program Donation Control - Totals
ASSETS ' :
Cash $174 $300 $19,720. '$48,382  $1,098,503
Accounts receivable 0 : 0 0 0 33,619
Grant revenue receivable 13,369 5,043 0 0 81,375
Total assets $13,543 $5,343 $19,720 .  $4B,382 $1,213,497
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,426
Accrued payroll 1,033 728 0 0 6,696
Accrued compensated absences - ST 0 0 0 0 396
Due to other funds 6,700 3,000 0 0 52,429
Total liabilities 7,733 3,728 0 0 99,947
Fund Balance:
Resiricted 5,810 1,615 19,720 48,382 1,097,464
Assigned 0 0 0 0 33,347
Unrestricted 0 0 0 0 (17,261)
Total fund balance 5,810 1,615 19,720 48,382 1,113,550
Total liabilities and fund balance $13,543 $5,343 $19,720 $48,382  $1,213,497

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cemetery Cibola Emergency
Perpetual Senior Medical Fire Foster
Care Citizens Services Protection Grandparents
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal $0 $114,913 $0 30 $0
Intergovernmental - state 0 165,581 118,526 153,074 70,707
Intergovernmental - other 0 32,400 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 0 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 1] 0
Fees ' 0 18,841 0 0 0
Sales of property 10,740 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
Tolal revenues 10,740 331,735 118,526 163,074 70,707
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 0
Public safety 0 0 11,705 129,943 0
Public works 0 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 19,631 391,428 0 0 70,769
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 0 0 79,616 0 0
Tolal expenditirres 19,631 391,428 91,321 129,943 70,768
Excess (dsficiency) of revenues over
axpenditures (8,891) (69,693} 27,205 23,131 (62)
Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 65,154 0 0 0
Operating transfers (ouf) 0 0 0 (54,408) 0
Tofal other financing sources (uses) 0 65,154 0 {54,408) 0
Net changes in fund balances (8,891) 5,461 27,205 (31,277) (62)
Fund balance, beginning of year 112,846 27,886 595 35,699 5,716
. Fund balance (deficit), end of year $103,955 $33,347 $27,800 $4,422 $5,654

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Housing

Authority
Capital Housing
Gasoline Funds Authority Juvenile
Road Tax Program Vouchers Recreation
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal $0 $45,102 $112,629 $0
Intergovernmental - state 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental - other 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 107,347 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 0 0
Sales of property 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 317 0
Total revenues 107,347 45,102 112,946 0
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0
Public safety 0 0 0 0
Public works 106,645 0 0 0
Health and welfare 0 0 261,234 0
Culture and recreation 0 0 0 0
Capital outlay 91,126 2,600 0 0
Total expendilures 197,771 2,600 261,234 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendifures (90,424) 42,502 (148,288) 0
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers (out) (36,300) (42,502) Q 0
Total other financing sources (Uses) {36,300) (42,502) 0 0
Net changes in fund balances (126,724) 0 (148,288) 0
Fund balance, beginning of year 713,166 0 131,432 92,373
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $586,432 $0 {$16,856) $92,373

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Law Lilter Local Lodgers'
Enforcement Control and Government  Lodgers’ Tax
Protection Beautification Corrections Tax Promotional
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal 30 $0 $0 %0 $0
. Intergovernmental - state 0 7,332 0 0 0
Intergovernmental - other 0 0 0 0 0
Lodgers' tax 0 0 0 352,362 0
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 0 0
Fees : ) 0 0 34,676 0 0
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 0 7,332 34,676 352,352 -0
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 55,265 0
- Public safety 11,268 0 97,479 0 0
Public works 0 0 0 0 0
Health and welfare 0 7,787 0 0 0
Culture and recreation 0 1] 0 0 288,622
Capital outlay 14,128 0 0 0 0
Tolal expenditures 25,396 7,787 97,479 55,265 288,622
Excess (deficiency) of reventues over :
expenditires (25,396) (455) {62,803) 297,087 (288,622)
Other Financing Sources (Uses}: _
Operating transfers in 0 0 120,000 0 285,000
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 {335,000) 0
Total other financing sources {(uses) 0 0 120,000 {335,000) 285,000
Net changes in fund balances {25,396) (455) 57,197 (37,913) (3,622)
Fund balance, beginning of year 47,554 50 (14,829) 126,096 52,214
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $22 158 ($405) $42,368 $88,183 $48,592

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

State
and Local
Senior Senior Special Narcotics
Companion Employment Library Assistance
Program Program Donation Control Totals
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal $0 $0 30 $0 $272,644
Intergovernmental - state 80,162 34,724 0 0 630,106
Intergovernmental - other 0 0 0 789 33,189
Lodgers' tax ) 0 0 0 0 352,352
State shared taxes and municipal taxes 0 0 0 0 107,347
Fees 0 0 0 0 53,517
Sales of property 0 0 0 0 10,740
Donations 0 0 770 0 770
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 317
Total revenues 80,162 34,724 770 789 1,460,982
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 0 0 0 0 55,265
Public safety 0 0 0 0 250,395
Public works 0 0 0 0 106,645
Health and welfare 82,720 35,107 0 0 868,676
Culture and recreation 0 0 123 0 288,745
Capital cutlay 0 0 0 0 187,470
Total expenditures 82,720 35,107 123 0 1,757,196
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (2,558) (383) 647 789 (296,214)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0 470,154
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0 {468,210)
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0 1,944
Net changes in fund balances {2,558) (383) 647 789 (294,270}
Fund balance, beginning of year 8,368 1,998 19,073 47 593 1,407,820
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $5.810 $1,615 $19,720 $48,382 $1,113,550

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final _ Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES . )
Sale of lots . $7,000 $7,000 $10,740 $3,740
Interest an investments 0 0 0 0
Donations 0 0 0 0

Tolal revenues 7.000 7,000 10,740 3,740
EXPENDITURES . .
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 0 0 19,631 (19,631)
Capital outlay 100,000 100,000 0 100,000

Total expendilures 100,000 100,000 19,631 80,369
FExcess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ' (93,000) {93,000) ($8,891) $84,109
Budgeted cash carryover : 93,000 93,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($8,891)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($8,891)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CIBOLA SENIOR CITIZENS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Original Final - Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVEMNUES ‘
Intergovernmental $300,745 $300,745 $299,182 ($1,563)
Fees and charges 19,747 19,747 18,841 (9086)
Other revenue 1,000 1,000 0 {1,000)

Total reveniies 321,492 321,492 318,023 (3,469)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 212,700 212,700 220,132 (7,432)
Operating 173,351 173,351 169,586 3,765
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Tolal expenditures 386,051 386,051 389,718 (3,667)
-Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (64,559) (64,559) (71,695) (7,136)
Other Financing Sources (Uses}:
Operating transfers in 60,000 65,154 65,154 0
Operating transfers {out) 0 0 0 0

Tofal ofher financing sources (uses) 60,000 65,154 65,154 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {uses) (4,5b9) $595 ($6,541) {$7,136)
Budgeted cash carryover 4,559

$0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) {$6,541)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 13,712
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (1,710)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

$5,461




CITY OF GRANTS
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL {(CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved - Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actlual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $9,390 $9,390 $91.326 $81,936
Interest on investments ' 0 0 0 0

Toltal revenues 9,390 9,390 91,326 81,936
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 ‘ 0 0
Operating 0 0 11,705 {11,705)
Capital outlay 9,985 9,985 79,616 {69,631)

Total expenditures 9,985 9,985 91,321 {81,336)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (595) (595) $5 $600
Budgeted cash carryover 595 595

| $0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Repoiting Reconciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $b
Adjustments for revenue accruals 27,200
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $27,205

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FIRE PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $153,074 $153,074 $153,074 $0
Miscellaneous )] 0 0 0
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 153,074 153,074 153,074 0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 Q 0 0
QOperating 64,797 64,797 131,229 (66,432)
Capital outlay 70,845 70,845 0 70,845

Total expendilures 135,642 135,642 131,229 4,413
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 17,432 17,432 21,845 4,413
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (out) (54,417) (54,417) {64,408) 9
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) (36,985) (36,985) ($32,563) $4,422
Budgeted cash carryover 36,985 36,985

$0 30

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($32,563)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 1,286
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$31,277)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
FOSTER GRANDPARENTS PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
4 Intergovernmental $80,199 $80,199 $66,518 {$13,681)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 25,687 25,687 62,169 (36,482).
Operating 45,020 45,020 8,699 36,421
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Tofal expenditures 70,707 70,707 70,768 (61)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures $9,492 $9,492 ($4,250) (31 3,742)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongiliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($4,250)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 4,189
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (1)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($62)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

GASOLINE ROAD TAX FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Qriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES '
Intergovernmental $227,806 $227,805 30 - ($227,805)
Property tax 0 0 . 0 0
State shared taxes 105,000 105,000 107,347 2,347
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous revenue 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 332,805 332,805 107,347 (225,458)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 78,959 78,959 78,959 0
Operating 503,740 503,740 27,686 476,054
Capital outlay 0 0 91,126 (91,126)

Total expendifures 582,699 582,699 197,771 384,928
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (249,894) {249,894) (90,424) 159,470
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Qperating transfers in 0 0 0 0
QOperating transfers (out) (28,725) (28,725) 0 28,725

Total other financing sources (uses) (28,725) {28,725) 0 28,725
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ' (278,619) (278,619) ($90,424) = $188,195
Budgeted cash carryover 278,619 278,619

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financial sources

over expenditures and other financing uses {budgetary) ($90,424)
Adjustments for revenue accruals, transfers, earnings on |

investments . 0
Adjustments for expenditures for payables, inventory, other

expenditure accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($90,424)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
HOUSING AUTHORITY CAPITAL FUNDS PROGRAM
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $50,500 $50,500 $45,102 ($5,398)
. Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 50,5600 50,600 45,102 {5,398)
EXPENDITURES
Persannel _ 0 0 0 0
Operating , 0 0 0 0
Capital cutlay o 50,000 50,000 2,600 47,400
Total expenditires 50,000 50,000 2,600 47,400
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 500 500 42,602 42,002
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operaling transfers (out) 0 0 (42,502) (42,602)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures and
other financing sources (uses) $500 $500 $0 {$500)

Note: The budget used is only a guideline and is not required by HUD to be amended.
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) 30
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

HOUSING AUTHORITY VOUCHERS FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $500,000 $500,000 $112,635 ($387,365)
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous income 0 0 311 311

Total revenuies 500,000 500,000 112,846 (387,064)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 24,000 24,000 22,699 1,301
Operating 14,810 14,810 11,928 2,882
Housing assistance payments 500,000 500,000 227,192 272,808
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 538,810 538,810 261,819 276,991
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (38,810) (38,810)  ($148,873)  ($110,063)
Budgeted cash carryover 38,810 38,810

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and :

other financing sources {uses) ($148,873)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 585
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($148,288)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
JUVENILE RECREATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
State shared taxes $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Toftal revenues 0 0 0 0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures i 60,000 60,000 0 60,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (60,000) (60,000) $0 $60,000
Budgeted cash carryover 60,000 60,000

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources _ _

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
178-




CITY OF GRANTS
LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Criginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental $27,800 $27,800 $27,800 30
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Tofal revenites ' 27,800 27,800 27,800 0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 -0
Operating 13,654 13,564 25,396 (11,842)
Capital outiay 34,000 34,000 0 34,000

Total expendilures 47,654 47,554 25,396 22,158
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (19,754) (19,754) $2,404 $22,158
Budgeted cash carryover 19,754 19,754

$0 %0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $2,404
Adjustments for revenue accruals (27,800)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$25,396)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LITTER CONTROL AND BEAUTIFICATION FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $7,100 $7,100 $1,750 ($5,350)
EXPENDITURES ,
Personnel . 7,100 7,100 1,360 5,740
Operating ‘ 0 0 6,000 (6,000)
Capital outlay 0 0 . 0 0
Tolal expenditures 7,100 7,100 7,360 (260)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures $0 30 ($5,610) ($5,610)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($5,610)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 5,682
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (427)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$455)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORRECTIONS FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Qriginal Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Court fees : $35,000 $35,000 $34,676 ($324)
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0
Total revenues 35,000 35,000 34,676 (324)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 150,000 150,000 113,693 36,307
Capital outiay 0 0 0 0
Tolal expendilures 150,000 150,000 113,693 36,307
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (115,000) (115,000) (79,017) 35,983
Other Financing Sources (Uses): _
Operating transfers (in) 120,000 120,000 120,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $5,000 $5,000 $40,983 $35,983
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiéncy) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) 40,983
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 16,214
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $57,197

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Lodgers' tax $365,000 $365,000 $356,065 ($8,935)
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 365,000 365,000 356,065 (8,935)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operalting 64,369 64,369 55,265 9,104
Capital outlay ' 0 0 0 0

Total expenditures 64,369 64,369 55,265 9,104
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures 300,631 300,631 300,800 169
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (out) (383,000} (383,000) (335,000) 48,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures and
other financing sources (ises) {82,369) (82,369) {$34,200) 348,169
Budgeted cash carryover 82,369 82,369

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Recongciliation:
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($34,200)
Adjustments for revenue accruals (3,713)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($37,913)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LODGERS' TAX PROMOTIONAL FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final - Favorable

Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 366,000 366,000 - 293,899 72,101
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

Tolal expendilures 366,000 366,000 293,899 72,101
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (366,000) (366,000) (293,899) 72,101
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in - 333,000 333,000 285,000 (48,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (ses) (33,000) {33,000) ($8,899) $24,101
Budgeted cash carryover : 33,000 33,000

0 30

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($8,899)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 5,277
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($3,622)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES :
Intergovernmental $101,399 $101,399 $83,405 {$17,994)
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 30,733 30,733 68,406 {37,673)
Operating 50,960 50,960 13,282 37,678
Capital outlay 0 ‘ 0 0 0
Total expenditures 81,693 81,693 81,688 5
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over expenditures $19,706 $19,706 $1,717 {$17,989)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $1,717
Adjustments for revenue accruals (3,243)
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {1,032)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($2,558)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SENIOR EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
. Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $31,250 $31,250 $32,044 $794
EXPENDITURES '
Personnel 26,043 26,043 34,719 (8,676)
Operating 0 0 0 0
Tolal expendilures 26,043 26,043 34,719 (8,676)
Excess (deﬁciency) of reveniies over expenditures $5,207 $5,207 ($2,675) ($7,882)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) ($2,675)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 2,680
Adjustments for expenditures accruals {388)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) {$383)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SPECIAL LIBRARY DONATION FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Donations $700 $700 $770 $70
Interest on investments 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 700 700 770 70
EXPENDITURES
Personnel : 0 0 0 0
Operating 3,500 3,500 123 3,377
Capital ocutlay 14,000 14,000 0 14,000

Total expenditures 17,500 17,500 - 123 17,377
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (16,800} {16,800) $647 517,447
Budgeted cash carryover - 16,800 16,800

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $647
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $647

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
STATE AND LLOCAL NARCOTICS ASSISTANCE CONTROL PROGRAM FUND
‘ SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES '
Intergovernmental $0 $0 $28,530 $28,530
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Total revenuss -0 0 28,530 28,630
EXPENDITURES
Personnel 0 0 0 0
Operating 15,000 15,000 0 15,000
Capital outlay 0 0 -0 0

Tofal expenditures 156,000 15,000 0 15,000
Excess (doficiency) of revenues over expendilures (15,000) (15,000) $28,530 $43,630
Budgeted cash carryover 15,000 156,000

30 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) $28,530
Adjustments for revenue accruals (27,741)
Adjusiments for expenditures accruals ' 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis} $789

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013
Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and related costs.

GRT Income Fund — To accumulate funds for payment of principal and interest.

GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund 1993A — To accumulate funds for payment of refunding debt.

GRT Revenue Bond Reserve Fund 1993A — To accumulate funds per refunding bond agreement to insure future payment.

NMFA Loan — To accumulate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of a statewide gross receipis tax
distributed by the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department.

NMFA Reserve — To accumulate funds for payment of loan to be paid from proceeds of gross receipts tax.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2013

GRT GRT
GRT Revenue Revenue
Income Bond Bond NMFA NMFA
Fund Debt Service  Reserve Loan Reserve Totals
ASSETS
Cash $0 $123,137 $0 $0 $0  $123,137
Cash held with frustee 0 176,683 149,894 128,330 64,389 519,296
Total assets $0 $299,820 $149,894  $128,330 $64,389 $642,433
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities $0 30 - $0 $0 $0 $0
Fund Balance:
Restricted 0 299,820 149,894 128,330 64,389 642,433
Total fund balance 0 289 820 149,894 128,330 64,389 642,433
Total liabilities and fund balance $0 $299,820 $149,894 $128,330 $64,389 $642,433

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

GRT GRT
GRT Revenue Revenue
Income Bond Bond - NMFA NMFA
Fund Debt Service Reserve Loan Reserve Totals

REVENUES
Taxes $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $0
Investment income 0 23 522 38 224 807

Total revenues 0 23 522 38 _ 224 807
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal 0 140,000 0 130,253 0 270,253
Interest 0 6,596 0 21,977 0 28,573
Fees 0 537 0 976 0 1,513

Total expenditures 0 147,133 0 153,206 0 300,339
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures 0 (147,110) 522 (153,168) 224 (299,532)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 146,596 147,387 0 160,855 0 454,838
Operating transfers (out) {146,596} 0 {791) 0 (340)  (147,727)

Tolal other financing sources (Us98) 0 147,387 {791) 160,855 (340) 307,111
Net changes in fund balances 0 277 (269) 7,687 (116) 7.579
Fund balance, beginning of year 0 299,543 150,163 120,643 64,505 634,854
Fund balance, end of year $0 $299,820 $149,804  $128,330 '$64,389  $642,433

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

-90-




CITY OF GRANTS
GRT INCOME FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES ' -
Interest on investments $0 $0 $0 $0
EXPENDITURES
Paying agent fees 0 0 0 0
' Bond interest 0 0 0 0
Bond principal 0 0 0 0
Tolal expendifures 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 0 0
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 133,788 133,788 146,596 12,808
Operating transfers (out) (133,788) {133,788) (146,596) {12,808)
Tofal other financing sources (uses) 0 0 -0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) 30 $0 $0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals ' 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) $0

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE FUND 1993A
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Interest on investments $0 30 $23 $23
EXPENDITURES .
Paying agent fees 4,000 4,000 637 3,463
Bond interest ‘ 6,596 6,596 6,596 0
Bond principal _ : 140,000 140,000 140,000 0
Total expenditures 150,596 150,596 147,133 3,463
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (150,596} (150,596) (147,110) 3,486
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 154,096 154,096 147,387 (6,709)
Operating transfers {out) 0 0 0 0
Tofal olher financing sources (Lises) 154,096 154,096 147,387 (6,709)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
olher financing sources (uses) $3,500 $3,600 $277 (33,223)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $277
Adjustments for revenue accruals . 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) - $277

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GRT REVENUE BOND RESERVE FUND 1993A
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved {Unfaverable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES '
Interest $7,500 $7.500 $522 ($6,978)
EXPENDITURES
Management fees 500 500 0 500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 7,000 7,000 522 (6,478)
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers (out) {7,500) (7,500) (791) 6,709

Total other financing sources {uses) (7,500) {7,500) (791) 6,709
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) (500) (600) ($269) $231
Budgeted cash carryover ' 500 500

$0 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reperting Recongciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources (uses) ($269)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($269)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA LOAN FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES ,
Interest/Investment income $0 $0 $38 $38
EXPENDITURES
Principal 101,688 129,568 130,253 (685)
Interest 21,178 22,023 21,977 6
Fees 3,000 3,000 976 2,024

Total expenditures 125,866 154,691 153,206 1,385
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (125,866) {154,591) (153,168) 1,423
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Loan proceeds - NMFA 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers in 129,224 157,949 160,855 2,906
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0

Tolal other financing sotirces (uses) 129,224 157,949 160,855 2,906
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $3,358 $3,358 $7,687 ($4,024)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) $7,687
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis)

$7,687

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NMFA RESERVE FUND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final Favorable
Approved Approved (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Interest on investments $5,000 $5,000 $224 ($4,776)
EXPENDITURES
Principal 0 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0
Fees 0 0 0 0

Tofal expenditures 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 5,000 5,000 224 (4,776)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers (oul) ' (5,000) {5,000) {340) 4,660
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses) $0 30 (3116) ($116)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and

other financing sources {uses) ($116)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Adjustments for expenditures accruals 0
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($116)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total
ASSETS
Cash $1,098,503 .$123,137 $1,221,640
Cash held with trustee 0 519,296 519,296
Accounts receivable 33,619 0 33,619
Grant revenue receivable 81,375 0 81,375
Total assels $1,213,497 $642,433 $1,855,930
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $40,426 $0 $40,426
Accrued payroll 6,696 0 6,696
Accrued compensated absences - ST 396 0 396
Due to other funds 52,429 0 52,429
Total liabilities 99,047 0 99,947
Fund Balances:
Restricted 1,097,464 642,433 1,739,897
Assigned 33,347 0 33,347
Unrestricted (17,261) 0 {17,261)
Total fund balances 1,113,550 642,433 1,755,983
Total liabilities and fund balances $1,213,497 $642,433 $1,855,930

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

TOTAL ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Special Debt
Revenue Service Total

REVENUES
Intergovernmental - federal $272,644 $0 $272,644
Intergovernmental - staie 630,106 0 630,106
intergovernmental - other 33,189 0 33,189
State shared and municipal taxes 107,347 0 107,347
Lodgers' tax 352,352 0 352,352
Fees 53,5617 0 53,517
Investment income 0 807 807
Sales of property 10,740 0 10,740
Donations 770 0 770
Miscellaneous 317 0 317

Tolal revenues 1,460,982 807 1,461,789
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 65,265 0 55,265

Public safety 250,385 0 250,395

Public works 106,645 0 106,645

Health and welfare 868,676 0 868,676

Culture and recreation 288,745 0 288,745
Capital outlay 187,470 0 187,470
Debt Service:

Principal 0 270,253 270,253

Interest 0 28,573 28,573

Fees 0 1,513 1,613

Total expenditures 1,757,196 300,339 2,057,535
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (296,214) {299,532) (595,746)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in 470,154 454,838 924,992
Operating transfers (out) (468,210) (147,727) (615,937}

Tolal other financing sources (uses) 1,944 307,111 305,055
Net changes in fund balances (294,270) 7,579 (286,691)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,407,820 634,854 2,042,674
Fund balance, end of year $1,113,550 $642,433 $1,755,983

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources fo be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities.

General Government Improvements Fund — Accounts for construction and improvement funds received from various
sources for the improvement of City properties.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GENERAL GOVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorahle

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental ' $8,090,076 $8,000,076 $1,007,359 ($7,082,717)
Other 174,438 174,438 10,107 {164,331)
Rental revenue 0 0 10,348 10,348

Tolal revenues 8,264,514 8,264,514 1,027,814  (7,236,700)

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Capital outlay 10,055,364 10,055,354 4,108,066 5,947,288
Tofal expenditures 10,055,354 10,055,354 4,108,066 5,947 288
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures (1,790,840) (1,790,840) (3,080,252) (1,289,412)

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers in 1,792,770 1,792,770 1,042,770 (750,000)
Operating transfers (out) 0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,792,770 1,792,770 1,042,770 {750,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendifures
and other financing sources (uses) $1,930 $1,930 ($2,037,482) ($2,039,412)
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciltation:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and
other financing sources {(uses) {$2,037,482)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 777,632
Other financing sources (uses) 669,723
Adjustments for expenditures accruals (687,5675)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses (GAAP Basis) ($1,277,702)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Golf Course Operating Fund — To account for the operation of the municipal golf course.

Low Rent— A direct HUD-funded program designed to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing and related facilitics for
eligible low-income families and the elderly through an authorized Public Housing Authority (PHA) or Indian Housing
Authority (THA). '
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2013

Low Rent
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $43,382
Investments . 0
Accounts receivable tenants (net of allowance of $2,588) 1,223
Accounts receivable - 0
interest receivable 0
Prepaid insurance 0
Due from other funds 31,719
Tolal current assels 76,324
Capital Assets
Capital assets - not depreciated 46,724
Capital assets - depreciated 1,152,647
Less accumulated depreciation (671,931)
Nef capital assels 527,440
Total assels $603,764
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $3,959
Accrued payroll 997
Due to other funds 0
Other deferred credits 99
Tenant security deposits 5,000
Tenants prepaid rent 347
Compensated absences - current portion 926
Total current liabilities 11,328
Non-Current Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 1,624
Leases payable - long-term portion .0
Toltal noncurrent liabilities 1,624
Total liabilities 12,852
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 527,440
Unrestricted 63,472
Total fund nef position 590,912
Total liabilities and fund net position $603,764

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Low Rent
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental income $42 174
Total operaling revenues 42,174
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses 78,024
Depreciation 33,725
Total operating expenses. 111,749
Operating income (loss) {(69,575)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND (EXPENSES)
Federal grants and subsidies 30,137
Interest earnings 0
Other 634
Loss on asset disposals 0
Total non-operating revenue and (expenses) 30,771
Net income (foss} before contributions and fransfers (38,804)
Operating transfers in 42,501
Operating transfers (out) 0
Capital transfers in 2,600
Capital transfers (out) {2,600}
Change in net position 3,697
Total fund net position, at beginning of year, previoulsty stated 587,033
Restatement (prior period voided checks) 182
Total fund net position, at beginning of year, restated 587,215
Total fund net position, at end of year $590,912

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Low Rent
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers (including other funds) $64,022
Cash paid to suppliers (36,869)
Cash paid to employees {42,852)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities {15,699)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grants and subsidies 30,137
Advances (to) from other funds {14,493)
Transfers in (out) 42 5M
Non tenant income 634
Nel cash provided {used) by noncapital financing activilies 58,779
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment, net of trades 0
Disposition of assets 0
Lease proceeds 0
Capital transfers (in) out 0
Loss on asset disposal 0
Principal paid: revenue bonds/lease purchasefadvances 0
Grants and subsidies 0
Other income 0
Nef cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities 0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 0 -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 0
Net increase (decrease) in cash 43,080
Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year 302
Cash and restricted cash, end of year $43,382
Non Cash Transactions:
Capital assets transfarred in (out) 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND
| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Low Rent
Reconciliation of aperating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operaling income (loss) ($69,575)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 33,728
Provision for uncollectible accounts 0
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivables 21,497
Inventories 0
Prepaids and deposits 0
Increase (Decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and contracts payable {1.516)
Wages payable 436
Compensated absences (617)
Other deferred credits and Tenant deposits 399
Tenants prepaid rent (48)
Total adjustments 53,876
Net cash provided (used} by operating activities {$15,699)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
GOLF COURSE OPERATING FUND
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES ’
Golf course fees $265,000 $265,000 $248,837 ($16,163)
Rental income 0 0 831 831
Other 0 0 3,866 3,866
Tolal revenues 265,000 265,000 253,634 - {11,466)
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 394,312 394,312 353,617 40,795
Operating 370,552 370,552 373,946 (3,.394)
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Tolal operaling expenses 764,864 764,864 727,463 37,401
Operating income (loss) (499,864) {499,864) (473,929) 25,935
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Transfers in 475,000 475,000 475,000 0
Transfers {out) 0 0 0 0
Total non-operating revenue {expenses) 475,000 475,000 475,000 0
Net income (loss) after transfers {24,864) (24,864) $1,071 $25,935
Budgeted cash carryover 24,864 24,864
$0 $0
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Net income (loss) after transfers $1,071
Adjustments for revenue accruals 0
Capital transfers 12,699
Adjustments for expense accruals {(64,460)
Net income (loss) (GAAP) Basis ($50,690)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
LOW RENT
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES '
Rental income $30,000 $30,000 $42,174 $12,174
Tolal revenues 30,000 30,000 42174 12,174
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel 55,000 55,000 43,107 11,893
Operating 75,000 75,000 98,254 (23,254)
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total operaling expenses 130,000 130,000 141,361 {11,361)
Operating income (loss) (100,000) {100,000) (99,187) 813
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
HUD grants and subsidy 100,000 100,000 30,137 {69,863)
Interest 500 500 0 (b00)
Other 0 0 634 634
Transfers in 0 0 42,502 42 502
Tofal non-operafing revenue {(expenses) 100,500 100,500 73,273 {27,227)
Nef income (loss) after non-operating revenue $500 $500 ($25,914) ($26,414)
Note: The budget is used only as a guideline and is not required by HUD to be amended.
Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:
Net income (loss) after non-operating revenue ($25,914)
Adjustments for revenue-accruals 0
Adjustments for expense accruals and depreciation 29,611
$3,697

Net income (loss) (GAAP) Basis

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
UTILITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Original Final
Approved Approved Favorable
Budgst Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

REVENUES '
Refuse collection $1,525,000 $1,525,000 $1,672,872 $147,872
Water sales (net) 1,856,000 1,856,000 1,995,334 139,334
Sewer charges 1,684,000 1,684,000 1,802,008 118,008
Total government tax 252,600 252,500 288,402 35,902
Qther 65,000 65,000 151,801 86,801

Total revenues 5,382,500 5,382,500 5,910,417 527,917
OPERATING EXPENSES ) _
Public works 5,280,304 5,280,304 4,569,893 710,411
Capital outlay 385,000 385,000 309,186 75,814

Tolal operaling expenses 5,665,304 5,665,304 4,879,079 786,225

Operating income (loss) (282,804) (282,804) 1,031,338 1,314,142
Non-Operating Revenue {Expenses)
Interest income 30,000 30,000 207 {29,793)
Transfers in 592,598 592,598 808,712 216,114
Transfers (out) (1,292,618) (1,292,618) (1,489,284) (196,666)
Interest expense {54,304) (54,354) (50,137) 4,217
Principal payments (498,074) {498,074) (513,103) (15,029)
Debt service fees (5,500) (5,500) (842) 4,658

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (1,227,948) (1,227,948) (1,244,447) (16,499)

Net income (loss) (1,610,752) (1,5610,762)  ($213,109) $1,297,643
Budgeted cash catryover 1,510,752 1,610,752

30 $0

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation:

Net income ($213,109)
Adjustments for revenue accruals 35,822

Capital transfers in (out) - net {509,614)
Adjustments for expense accrualst depreciation and principal payments (317,32b)
Net income (GAAP) Basis ($1,004,226)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Agency I'unds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, privale organizations, other
governments, or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Appearance Bond Fund — To account for collection and payments of Appearance Bonds from individuals arrested or cited
by City Police.

Senior Citizens — To account for funds raised by members of the City of Grants Senior Citizen Organization to be used by
and for Senior Citizen functions.
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CITY OF GRANTS
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Balance Balance
June 30, 2012 Increase Decrease  June 30, 2013
Appearance Bond Fund:
Assets
Petty cash $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in bank 18,637 11,164 9,399 20,402
$19,137 511,164 $9,399 $20,902
Liabilities
Deposits held for others $19,137 $11,164 $9,309 $20,902
- Senior Activity Account:
Assels
Cash in bank $2,266 $316 $765 $1,817
Liabilities
Funds held for Seniors $2,266 $316 $765 $1,817
Total Agency Funds:
Assets
Petly cash $500 $0 $0 $500
Cash in bank 20,903 11,480 10,164 22,219
Tofal assets $21,403 $11,480 $10,164 $22,719
Liabilities
Deposits held for others $21,403 $11,480 $10,164 $22,719

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Total Revenues
Eslimated and
Responsible Party Beginning and Amountol  Contrbution Audil Expendilures
Parlicipants for Operalions Descripltions Ending dales Projecl 61302013 Responsibility Repoited on:
City of Granis NW New Mexico  Solid waste disposal July 1, 2012 NiA 38,687 WM NM REV: NW NMSW
NW New Mexico Regional Solid services June 30, 2013 Solid Wasle EXP: City of Granis
Solid Waste Waste Aulhority
Authority
City of Grants Village of Milan ~ Operalion of Public Transil September 1, 2006 N/A 347,234 \illage of Milan REV: Village of Milan
County of Cibola System and Lib, Sr. Anim .
Vilfage of Milan Conlinuing . Cibola County
Cibola Transil Aulhority
EXP: Cily of Granis
Cily of Granis County of Cibola  Cibola Regicnal February 8, 2013 N/A $280.640 County of REV: County of Cibola
County of Cibola Communications Center and Cibota EXP: Gity of Granls
Viltage of Milan Gonlinuing

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SENIOR PROGRAMS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Congreg. Home Del, Assisled Senior
Sources(s) of Revenue(s) Meals Meals  Transportation Transporlalion Homemaker Emp. NSIP Chore Tolal
Federal IIB $0 $0 $33,484 $0 $6,858 30 $0 $0 $40,342
Federal 11IC-1 36,160 0 0 0 . o 0 0 0 36,160
Federal II1C-2 | 0 11,759 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,759
Federal llI-E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4]
Slate 58,569 80,264 18,163 0 8,685 0 0 0 165,581
Slate Senior Employment 0 0 0 0 0 34724 0 0 34724
NSIP o 0 0 0 0 0 26,652 0 26,652
Local Funds 9,763 49,750 18,637 0 19,404 0 0 0 97,554
Program Income 15,343 3,497 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,840
Totals $119,835 $145,270 $70,284 $0 $34,847  $34,724 326,652 §0 $431,612
Actual Expenditures BY
Funding Source
Federal llIB $0 $0 $33,484 $0 $6,858 $0 $o0 $0 $40,342
Federal 11IC-1 36,160 0 0 0 0 0 1] 0 36,160
Federal 11IC-2 0 11,758 0 0 0 0 0 1] 11,759
Federal lllI-E 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Slaie 58,569 80,264 9,394 0 5,796 0 0 0 154,023
Slate Senior Employment 0 0 0 0 0 34,724 0 0 34,724
NSIP 0 0 0 0 0 ) 26,652 0 26,652
Local Funds 31,963 71,689 0 0 0 383 0 0 104,035
Program Income 15,343 3,497 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,840
Totals $142,035 $167,200 $42,878 $0 $12,654  $35107  $26,652 $0  $426,535
Unlits Provided: 17,036 18,809 5,200 1,463 42,588

The Notes to Financial Statements

are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal
CFDA
Number Accrued or Accrued or
or {Delerred) {Deferred)
. Agency Project Award Revenue at  Revenue at
Federal Grantor/Program Tille Prefix Number Amount June 30, 2012 Recsipts Expendilures  June 30, 2013
U.8, Department of Health and Human Services
Passad through North Central
New Mexlco Economic Development District
Special Programs for the Aging Title Il B 93.044 Conlracl #2012-13 60015 $40,342 $622 {$33,194) $40,342 $7.670
Title I C 93.045 47,919 1.553 (46,489) 47,919 2,993
Area Agency on Aging Coniract
Nulrilional Service Incenlive Program 93.053 No. 2011-12 26,652 0 {26,652) 26,652 0

Tofal U.S. Depariment of Health and Human Services $114,913 $2,075 {$108,335) §114,913 $10,653
U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development
Passed through New Mexico Department
of Finance and Adminlstration
Community Davelopment Bock Grant -

Johnson Slreel 14.288 10-C-NR-1-01-G-23 $445,000 $44,500 ($44,500) $0 $0
Comprehensive Plan 14.288 10-C-RS-1-06-A-111 50,000 22,666 (50,000) 27,334 0
Direct Funding:
Low Rent Public Houslng Operaling

Subsidy - Houslng 14.850 NM030-00000112D 30,137 0 (30,137) 30,137 0
Seclion 8 Rental Voucher Program -

Housing 14.871 NM030-00000113D 112,629 0 {112,629) 112,629 0
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 NM0D2P030501-09 40,276 19,977 (26,409) 6,432 4]
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 NMO2P030501-10 39,920 0 (4,920) 4,820 0
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 NMO2P030501-11 33,750 Q {33,750) 33,750 4]

Tolal UJ.S. Deparimen{ of Housing and Urban Developmen{ $751,712 $87,143 {$302,345) $215,202 30
U.S. Dapariment of Hometand Security
Passed through New Mexico Depariment
Securlty and Emergency Management
College Bridge Road 07.036 FEMA-4047-DRNM $6,243 $0 ($8,243) $8,243 30

Tolal U.S. Deparimenl of Homeland Securify $8,243 30 ($8,2423) $8,243 $0
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CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal
GFDA
Number Accrued or Accrued of
or (Deferred) (Deferred)
Agency Project Award Revenue al Revenue at
Federal Grantor/Program Tille Prefix Number Amount June 30, 2012 Receipls Expandilures  June 30, 2013
U.S. Department of Tranaporalion
Passed through New Mexlco Department
of Transportation
Operation Driving While Inloxicated (CDWI) 20,608 13-AL-64-030 $10,400 30 ($893) 34,801 $3,008
100 Days and Nighls of Summer 20.600 13-PT-D5-039 2175 0 0 0
Federat Highway Adm]nlslfatloﬁ 20.300¢ 7506(001) 1,708,889 0 1,628,013 1,628,013
Tolal U.S. Depariment! of Transporlalion $1,811,464 30 {$893) $1,632814 $1,631,821
Total Federal Financlal Assisfance $2,686,332 $89,218 {$417,816)  §1,971,172 $1,642,574

Grant revenue recoivable (page 12) ($1,714,777 less stale granl receivables of $72,203)

N/A - Not Available

Basis of Presentation:

The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of Granls and is presented on the acciual basis of accounting,

This information In this schedule Is presenled in accordance with the requirementis of OMB Circular A.133, "Audils of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profil Organizations."
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in lhe preparation of, he basic financial statements.
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Housing Authority of the City of Grants

Financial Data Schedule

6/30/2013
B B Low Rent Housing | Public Housing
Line o Business Public Choice Capital Fund
Iterm # Account Dascription Aclivities Housing Vouchers Program Total
111 Cash - Unrestricted 0 38,382 0 0 38,382
113 Cash - Other Resltricted 0 0 16,262 | Q 16,262
114 |Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 0 5,000 0 [0 5,000
100 Total Cash T 0 43382 16,262 0 59,644
121 Accounts Receivable - PHAProjects T 0 0 0 0
122 Dus from HUD - Qlher Projects 0 0 0 0 0
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government 0 0 0 B 0 0
125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenanis e 0 3,811 0 0 3.811
126.1 _ |Allowance for Doubtful Accls - Tenants 0 (2.588) 0 0 (2,538)
126.2 Allowance for Doubllul Accls - Olher 0 0 0 0 0
120 Total Receivables, Nel of Allowance for DoubtfullAccts | 0 1,223 0 0 1,223
132 Invesimenls - Reslricled 0 0 0 Q 0
142 Prepaid Expenses and Olher Assels 0 0 0 )] 0
144 Inter Program Due From 0 31,719 0 0 31,719
150 Total Current Assets 0 768,324 16,262 0 92,588
161 Land 0 46,724 0 0 46,724
162 Buildings 0 1,458,508 0 0 1,458,508
163 Furnilure,Equip & Machinery - Dwellings 0 20,412 0 0 20.412
164 Furnilure,Equip & Machinery - Administralion 0 33,523 8,814 0 42,337
185 Leasehold Improvements 0 43,531 0 0 43,531
166 Accumulated Depreciation 4] (918.513) (8,814) 1] {927,327
167 Conslruclion in Progress 0 0 0 0 0
168 __|Infrastructure e (1] 0 0 0 0
160 Tolal Capital Assels, Nel of Accumulaled Deprec 1] 684,185 0 0 684,185
180 Total Non-Current Assets o 0 684,185 [ 0 684,185
190 Total Assels 0 760,509 16,262 ¢ 776,771
311 Bank Overdraft 0 0 0 0 0
312 Accounts Payabla <= 90 Days [ 764 675 0 1,439
321 Accrued Wages/Payroll Taxes Payable [ 997 328 0 1,326
322 Accrued Compensaled Absences - Curreni Porlion 0 926 | 39 ] 1,322
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 0 3,195 0 o 3,195
341 Tenant Securily Deposits 0 5,000 1] 1] 5,000
342 Deferred Revenues 1] 347 0 ¢ 347
345 Cther Cutvent Liabilities 0 99 0 0 99
347 Inler Program - Due To 0 ¢ 31,719 0 31,719
310 Tolal Currenl Liabilities 0 11,328 33,118 1] 44,446
354 Accrued Compensaled Absences - Non Current 0 1,524 653 0 21477
350 Total Noncurrent Liabililies 0 1,524 653 Q 21477
300 Total Liabililies 0 12,852 33,71 0 46,623
508 Total Conlribuled Capilal 0 0 0 0 )
508.1 Invesled in Capital Assels, Nol of Related Debt 0 648,185 [ 0 648,185
511.1  |ReslrcledNetAssels - 0 0] {17.509) 0 {17.509)
121 Unrestricted Net Assets o 0 99,472 0 0 99,472
513 Tolal Equily/Nel Assels 0 747,657 {17,509} 0 730,148
600 Total Liabliities and Equily/Nef Assets 0 760,509 16,262 /] 776,771
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Housing Authority of the City of Grants

Financial Data Schedule

6/30/2013
70300 Nel Tenant Renlal Ravenug 0 41,564 0 0 41,564
70400 Tenanl Revenue - Other e 0 610 0 0 610
70500 Tolal Tenant Revenue 0 42,174 0 0 42,174
70600 |BUD PHA Operating Granis ~ o 30,137 112,635 42,502 185,274
70610 Capilal Grants 0 0 0 2,600 2,600
71100 Invesiment Income - Unrestricled 0 0 0 0 0
71300 Proceed Irom Disposition of Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0
71310 Cosl of Sale of Assets 0 0 0 0 [¢)
71400 Fraud Recovery 0 0 311 0 311
71500 Olher Revenue 0 634 0 0 634
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assels 0 0 0
72000 Investmenl Income - Restricted . 0 0 0 0 0
70000 Tolal Revenue 0 12,945 112,946 45,102 230,993
91100 |Administralive Salaries 0 129,554 5,980 0 45,534
91200  |Audiling Fees 0 0 0 0 0
91300 Management Fees 0 ¢ 0 ¢ ¢
91310 Bookkeeping Fees o 2,560 6,964 0 9.524
91400 Adverlising and Marketing a 282 45 0 307
91500 Employes Benefit Contributions - Administrative 0 10,781 5,292 0 16,073
91600 Office Expensas 0 8,180 2,11 0 10,891
91700 Legal Expenses 0 0 0 0 0
91800 Travel 0 1,972 784 0 2,756
91900 Olher 0 1,639 893 0 2432
91000 Total Operaling - Adminislration 0 54,848 32,669 0 87,517
92400 [Tenant Services - Othar T 0 0 0 [} 0
92500 Tolal Tenant Services 0 0 0 0 0
93100 Water B 0 1.073 0 0 1,073
93200 Eleclricily 0 2,339 0 0 2,339
93300 Gas . 0 4 0 0 4
93800 Other Ulitiies Expenso 0 0 0 0 0
93000 |Tolal Ulilities 0 3,416 0 0 3.416
24100 Ordinary Mainl and Operations - Labor 0 620 0 0 620
94200 Ordinary Mainl and Operations - Materials &0ther 4] 1,886 0 ] 1,886
94300 Ordinary Mainl and Operalions - Gonlract Cosls 0 7,369 0 0 7,389
24500 Employee Benefil Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance 0 81 0 0 81
94000 Tolal Maintenance and Operalions 0 9,976 0 0 9,976
96110 | Properly Insurance 0 4,741 836 0 5,577
96130 Workmen's Cempensation 0 2,033 0 0 2,033
96140 All Other Insurance 0 1,257 0 0 1,257
96100 Tolal Insurance Premijums 0 8,031 836 1] 8,867
96200 Qther General Expenses 0 0 139 0 139
26210 Compensaled Absences 0 {617) {264) 0 {881)
96400 Bad debt - Tenanls 0 2,369 0 0 2,369
96000 Tolal Olher General Expenses 0 1,752 {125) 0 1.627
96900 Tolal Operating Expenses 0 78,023 33,380 0 111,403
96900 Excess Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses 0 {5,078) 79,566 45,102 119,590
97300 Housing Assistance Payments 0 0 227,130 0 227,130
97350 HAP Portability-In 0 0 62 0 62
97200 Casually Losses - Non-Capitalized 0 0 0 ¢ 0
97400 Depreciation Expense 0 61,204 4] 7,231 68,435
90000 Tolal Expenses | 0 139,227 260,572 7,231 407,030
10010 |Operating Transfers In e 0 42,502 0 0 42,502
10020 Oparating Transfers Qul 0 0 0 (42,502) (42,502)
10093 Transfers between Project and Program - In L 0 0 0 0 0
10094 Transfers between Project and Program - Qut 0 0 0 0 0
10100 Tolal Olher FinancingSources (Uses) 0 42,502 0 (42,502) 0
10000 Excess {Deliciency) of Total Rev Over (Under) Tofal Exp 0 (23,780) (147,626) (4,631) (176,037}
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Housing Authority of the City of Grants
Financial Data Schedule

6/30/2013
11030 Beginning Equity 0 775,889 130,117 0 906,006
11040 Prior Period Adj, Equily Transfers, Correction of Erors 0 (4,452) 483 179
11170  |Administrative Fee Equily 0 i 0 1,349 0 1348
11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equily 0 0 (18,858) 0 (18,858)
14190 Unit Monlths Available L 240 240
11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 238 238
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REI;ORTIN G AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

“Independ ent Auditor’s Report

. Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State Auditor and
“The Mayor and City Council
City of Granis
Grants, New Mexico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons of the general fund and major special
revenue fund of the City of Grants (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Clty s basic financial stafements, and the combining and
individual funds and related budgetary comparisons of the Clty, presented as supplemental information, and have issued
our report thereon dated December 23, 2013,

Iﬂternal Conirol Over Financial Reporting

, In planning and performmg our audit, of the financial statements, we considered the City of Grants® internal control
over financial reporting (mtemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

City’s infernal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstaternent of the entity’s financiat statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencigs, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.
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Our consideration of internal confrol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies
in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be
significant deficiencies. 2013-01, 2013-02, 2013-03, 2013-04, and 2012-01.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining rcasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective ot our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our fests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-04 and 2010-02.

The City of Grants’ Responses to Findings

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. The City’s responses were not subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the result
of that testing, and fiot to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

KMLL/Q’&; [ o v-Co, ¢

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.
Las Cruces, New Mexico
December 23, 2013
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KRIEGEL/GRAY/SHAW & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TRADITIONAL YET PROGRESSIVE SERVICE SINCE 1962

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mr. Hector H. Balderas, State-Auditor and
The Mayor and City Council - ‘
City of Grants

Grants, New Mexico

Report on .Comp]iancé for Lach Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Grants’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Cireular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Grants® major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. City of Grants® major federal programs are identified in the summary of
-~ auditor’s resuits section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. = - . : : )

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Grants’ major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Grants’
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federallprogram.-
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Grants” compliance. '
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Granis complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Grants is responsible for cstablishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred fo above. Tn planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered City of Grants® internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but nof for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Grants® internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance cxists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencics, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit atfention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

W?Lé /Q(_Ly /,l@(a,u \‘—Cé)., Id Q

Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.
Las Cruces, New Mexico
December 23, 2013
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CITY OF GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of Auditor’s Report issued:

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material

weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal Control Over Major Programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses?

Type of Auditor’s Report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required fo be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of Major Programs:

Unqualified

Yes

No

X  Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Ungualified

Yes

No

CIFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.xxx Federal Aid Project

Federal Highway Administration

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs: $300,000

Audilee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION [l — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

2013-01 Lack of Controls over Travel and Per Diem — Significant Deficiency

Statement of Condition — We selected a sample of 20 travel transactions. Two vouchers of approximately $83 and $106
did not have appropriate supervisor approval, one of which was missing the employee’s signature. There was also one
instance where an individual received $30 of Per Diem in excess of state law Per Diem rates.

Criteria — Good internal controls require proper approval and review over Travel and Per Diem requests. Reimbursement
of travel expenses fo employees of all state agencies and local public bodies must comply with the New Mexico Mileage
and Per Diem Act (2.42.2 NMAC). '

Cause — Lack of careful review and not following established procedures.

Effect — Increase risk of fraudulent activity involving City Travel and Per Diem disbursements.

Recommendation — Implement proper controls which require appropriate supervisor review and approval of all Travel and
Per Diem disbursements.

Management’s Response — City will take the necessary steps to review all travel vouchers for the reimbursement amount
and proper signature approval before processing for payment.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED):

2013-02 Lack of Controls oyer Journal Entries — Significant Deficiency

Statement of Condition — We selected 26 journal entries made throughout the year. Beginning in April, journal enfries
prepared and entered by Director of Finance were not approved before entering into the accounting system ($1,164,409 out
of $2,158,647 entrics tested).

Criteria — Good internal controls require proper review and approval over journal entries.

Cause — Change in key personnel including the previous City Manager who approved journal entries.

Lffect — Increase risk of errors or fraudulent transactions through the use of journal entries.

Recommendation — All journal entries should be approved by an individual possessing appropriate accounting knowledge
(newly hired CPA).

Management’s Response — City will ensure that all journal entries are reviewed and approved before entries are made.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED):

2013-03 Backdated Checks and Wire Transfers — Significant Deficiency

Statement of Condition — Check and Wire transfer were backdated to June 2013. The check and wire transfer were written
between bank accounis held by the City. The check and wire transfer cleared the bank July 24 and July 22, 2013.

Check $1,493,927
Wire Transfer  $925,000

Criteria — Good internal controls require proper sequence and dating of transactions. Management should not override
internal controls over cash.

Cause — Large capital projects depleted the General Government Improvement fund cash balance for which grant funding
had not been received.

Lffect — Management manipulation of the infegrify of financial reporting.

Recommendation — Management should not backdate or postdate cash transactions in order to manipulate financial
reporting. '

Management’s Response — City will be making sure that entries post in a timely manner.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Il = FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT YEAR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES (CONTINUED):

2013-04 Legal Compliance with Budget — Significant Deficiency and Compliance

Statement of Condition — The City’s authorized budget was exceeded by actual expendiiures or actual transfers. The City
violated state statutes by exceeding the authorized budget within the following funds:

Budget Actual Over
Fund Amount Amount Expended
General Fund — Transfers Out $1,672,299 $1,768,870 ($96,571)
Cibola Sentor Center $386,051 $389,718 ($3,667)
Emergency Medical Services $9,985 $91,321 ($81,336)
Yoster Grandparents Program $70,707 $70,768 (361)
Litter Control and Beautification $7,100 $7.360 (3260)
Senior Employment Program $26,043 $34,719 ($8,676)
Low Rent $130,000 $141,361 ($11,361)
Housing Authority Capital Funds Program (transfers out) 50 $42,502 ($42,502)

Criteria — Section 6-6-6 of the New Mexico State Statutes restricts all officials and governing anthorities from approving
claims in excess of the approved budget. Additionally, Section 6-6-6 prohibits any payments in excess of the approved
budget. City officials and governing authoritics have the obligation to follow applicable state statutes.

Cause — There was a substantial change in personnel at the City as a result of the retirement of the City Manager and three
other senior personnel in key positions at or near the City’s fiscal year end.

Effect — Noncompliance with the New Mexico State Statutes could jeopardize future fund'uig opportunities.

Recommendation — We soggest that management closely monitor expenditures and budget limitations to ensure
compliance with budget restrictions. '

Management’s Response — City will monitor expenditures and budget limitations to ensure compliance with budget
restrictions. : :
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS:

2012-01 Mismanagement of City Inventory Maintained by Contractor — Significant Deficiency
Repeated with modification.

Statement of Condition — The inventory utilized by a contractor for water, sewer and parks maintenance is not regularly
counted and recorded on a perpetual basis.

Criteria— Good internal controls require proper controls over inventory fo prevent possible misappropriation of city assets
and inaccurate financial reporting.

Cause — Contractor failed to set procedures and assign responsibility to personnel.

Effect — Increase risk of misappropriation or fraudulent activity involving city inventory and duplicate expenditures for
items previously purchased.

Recommendation — Require confractor to follow professional service confract by maintaining accurate inventory records
and maintain a supportable perpetual inventory schedule which is periodically agreed to a physical inventory count.

Management Respounse — City ensures spot checks on inventory throughout the course of the year.

2012-02 Terminated Employees Not Paid Timely — Significant Deficiency

Resolved and not repeated.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SECTION |l - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

CURRENT STATUS ON PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (CONTINUED):

2010-02 Audit Report Not Submitted Timely — Non Compliance

Repeated with modification.
Statement of Condition — The audit report for the year ended June 30, 2013 was not submitted timely.

Criteria — Audits of Municipalities must be submitied by December 3 in accordance with the New Mexico State Audit
Rule 2.2.2 NMAC.

Cause — The audit was delayed due to a substantial change in personnel at the City as a result of the retirement of the City
Manager and three other senior personnel in key positions at or near the City’s fiscal year end.

Effect — Noncompliance with New Mexico State Audit Rule 2.2.2 NMAC.,
Recommendation — The City should implement a cross training program to better preparé for future staff departures.

Management’s Response — We concur with Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.’s finding and recommendation.
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CITY OF GRANTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED.COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS —
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS —
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT:

None.
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CITY OF GRANTS
EXIT CONFERENCE
JUNE 30, 2013

EXIT CONFERENCE:

The exit conference was held December 23, 2013 and was attended by the following:

From City of Grants:

Joe Murietta, Mayor

Paul Pefia, City Manager

Tammy Torrez, Director of Finance

From Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co., P.C.:

Debbie Gray, CPA/Shareholder

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION
Preparation of financial statements is the responsibility of management. Although, the City of Grants’ personnel provided

significant assistance in the preparation, the statements and related footnotes were prepared by Kriegel/Gray/Shaw & Co.,
P.C.
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